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Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Disclosures
This Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Report”) includes, and incorporates by reference, certain forward-looking statements made pursuant to the safe
harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The forward-looking statements may use the words “expect,” “anticipate,” “plan,”
“intend,” “project,” “may,” “believe” and similar expressions. These forward-looking statements reflect the current expectations of ANN INC. concerning
future events and actual results may differ materially from current expectations or historical results. Any such forward-looking statements are subject to

various risks and uncertainties, including without limitation those discussed in the sections of this Report entitled “Business,” “Risk Factors” and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” ANN INC. does not assume any obligation to publicly update or
revise any forward-looking statements at any time for any reason.

PART I

ITEM 1.

Business.

Overview

ANN INC., through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, is a leading national specialty retailer of women’s apparel, shoes and accessories, sold primarily
under the “Ann Taylor” and “LOFT” brands. We were incorporated in the State of Delaware in 1988 and changed our company name to ANN INC. in 2011.
For more than half a century, we have evolved with the needs of real women who live full, multi-faceted lives. Our values are her values. Our focus remains on
providing her with fashionable, versatile product, excellent value and an engaging shopping experience. We understand that a woman expresses herself through
what she wears - at work, at home and at play. And we’re there for her every step of the way, with stylish clothing and accessories that transform her,
allowing her to move from one instance to the next in her full and busy day.
We are committed to and driven by a simple but important mission: “to inspire and connect with our clients to put their best selves forward every day.”
This is evident in our strong brands as well as in our commitment to operate our business responsibly and thoughtfully. This commitment means that our
clients can look and feel great about the clothes they wear, and that as a business, we are holding ourselves to high standards. It means forging strong
partnerships with our suppliers so that our products are made ethically. It means investing in new programs and innovation to minimize our impact on the
environment. And it means making meaningful contributions to our communities.

Our rich heritage dates back to 1954, when we opened our first Ann Taylor store in New Haven, Connecticut. Back then, “Ann Taylor” represented a
best-selling dress style that embodied the well-dressed woman. Today, we operate 1,025 retail stores in 47 states, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico and
Canada, comprised of 268 Ann Taylor stores, 539 LOFT stores, 108 Ann Taylor Factory stores and 110 LOFT Outlet stores. In addition to our stores, our
clients can shop online in more than 100 countries worldwide at www.anntaylor.com and www.LOFT.com (together, our “Websites”) or by phone at 1-800DIAL-ANN and 1-888-LOFT-444.
Unless the context indicates otherwise, all references to “we,” “our,” “us,” and “the Company” refer to ANN INC. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Brands

Ann Taylor
At Ann Taylor, we champion the modern working woman and her love of fashion in everything we do. For generations, we have striven to be her go-to
style destination for every aspect of her life. Ann Taylor competes in the affordable luxury price category, and offers clients a high-quality collection of
beautiful, wear-now pieces and a unique combination of fashion, work and flattering fit. The goal at Ann Taylor is to help our clients feel confident, feminine
and successful.

LOFT
At LOFT, we believe the best relationships are built on trust and an amazing wardrobe. Originally established in 1996 as an extension of the Ann
Taylor brand, LOFT has evolved into a national brand that competes in the “upper-moderate” price category. LOFT has become a trusted personal stylist to its
clients by connecting with them on a genuine level - equal parts expert, confidante and friend who tells it like it is. We give our clients fashion advice, ideas
and inspiration that make her style aspirations attainable. We believe in offering versatile, accessible and affordable fashion with undeniably feminine appeal,
special and unexpected details and a flattering fit.
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Business Strategy
We are committed to growing our brands through our omni-channel retail strategy. Our goal is to enable clients to seamlessly shop our brands across
both store and online channels whenever and wherever they choose to shop. In support of this, during Fiscal 2012, we successfully launched the first phase of

our omni-channel initiative, which enabled store fulfillment of online sales. During Fiscal 2013, we built on this momentum by implementing e-receipt
technology, making significant enhancements to our online search engine optimization program and launching our client relationship management platform.
We have additional plans to optimize our omni-channel capabilities in Fiscal 2014 and beyond to further enhance this seamless client experience and drive
incremental sales and profitability.
Our omni-channel retail strategy, which is focused on integrating the in-store and online operations at Ann Taylor and LOFT, further enables us to
manage our full-price stores and Websites as a combined single channel at the brand level. This omni-channel focus guides most aspects of our plans for
growth at our Ann Taylor and LOFT brands, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Most merchandise styles are available both in-store and online, excluding wedding at Ann Taylor and maternity at LOFT, which are available online
only and represent a small percentage of each brand’s combined in-store and online merchandise assortment;
Technology that enables store fulfillment of online sales by allowing our Websites access to inventory maintained at full-price brick-and-mortar
brand locations;
Continued investments in technology to enable clients of our Ann Taylor and LOFT brands to seamlessly shop across store and online channels
whenever and wherever they choose to shop;
Coordinated online events designed to effectively and profitably clear through markdown inventory at Ann Taylor and LOFT stores;
Further integration of our merchandise planning, procurement and allocation functions to serve each brand’s full-price store and online channels;
Continued refinement of a cross-channel client relationship management tool focused on client behaviors across each brand’s full-price store and
online channels;
Integrated marketing and client outreach efforts aimed at increasing traffic and conversion, both in-store and online;
Weekly Ann Taylor and LOFT business review meetings focused on the combined productivity of each brand’s in-store and online channels;
Field training and monetary incentives aimed at educating and encouraging store associates to effectively meet the needs of our clients across
channels; and
Management incentive compensation programs at Ann Taylor and LOFT that reward associates based on the combined performance of each brand’s
full-price store and online channels.

We view the store and online operations of our full-price Ann Taylor and LOFT businesses as one single channel that allows clients to fully experience
those brands, not just a channel within those brands. Further, we manage our full-price in-store and online operations as a single, integrated channel rather
than as separate sales channels operating independently, with our Websites viewed as the largest store within each brand. In support of this, clients can return
merchandise purchased at our Websites at any of their respective full-price brick-and-mortar brand locations. The technology and reports utilized to manage
the business support this omni-channel approach, in that total sales and comparable sales are tracked on a combined basis. We believe this omni-channel
approach to managing our full-price Ann Taylor and LOFT businesses is critical to meeting the ever-increasing expectations of our clients, and therefore
critical to the ongoing success of our brands.

During Fiscal 2012, we opened our first stores in Canada, marking the first step in expanding our brands internationally. Building on this momentum,
during Fiscal 2013, we continued to expand our retail presence in Canada and launched international shipping capabilities to more than 100 countries
worldwide via our Websites. These efforts not only extend the reach of our brands to clients outside the United States, but also help us assess further potential
international expansion opportunities. Over the longer term, we will continue to evaluate these and other organic growth opportunities, including new
merchandise offerings and brand extensions, which may involve forging additional strategic partnerships, as we did in Fiscal 2013 with our shoe and eyewear
collections, or further evolving a brand or product category through our own internal efforts. In addition, we will continue to evaluate inorganic growth
opportunities, such as an acquisition, when our research indicates that such an opportunity will complement our existing brands and merchandise offerings
and is in the best interest of our associates, clients and shareholders. Our primary focus, however, remains on our core Ann Taylor and LOFT brands.
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Stores
We continue to focus considerable attention on optimizing our store portfolio, including our Websites, in order to improve profitability and better serve
our clients. As a result of our capital investments, approximately 80% of our Ann Taylor store fleet now reflects our modern aspirational brand aesthetic. At
LOFT, we have continued our strategy of expanding into small- and mid-markets, where we have identified potential for meaningful growth. We also believe
continued investments in our Websites and further integration of our store and online channels will be a major contributor to our future growth.

Retail Stores
Our stores are located in malls, specialty or lifestyle centers, downtown or village locations and destination shopping centers. We open new stores in
markets that we believe have a sufficient concentration of our target clients. We also optimize the size and/or location of existing stores as demographic
conditions warrant and sites become available. In addition, we regularly evaluate and invest in our current store base and elevate and modernize the in-store
experience we provide to our clients.

Store locations are determined on the basis of various factors, including geographic location, demographic studies, anchor tenants in a mall location,
other specialty stores in a mall or specialty center location or in the vicinity of a village location and the proximity to professional offices in a downtown or
village location. We open our Ann Taylor Factory and LOFT Outlet stores in outlet centers with co-tenants that generally include a significant number of outlet
or discount stores operated under nationally recognized upscale brand names. Store size is determined on the basis of various factors, including merchandise
needs, geographic location, demographic studies and space availability.
In Fiscal 2013, we continued our store growth program, opening 6 6 new stores, including seven new stores in Canada, bringing our total store base in
Canada to 10 stores at the end of Fiscal 2013. Capital expenditures related to our new stores totaled approximately $70.8 million and expenditures for store
remodeling and refurbishment projects totaled approximately $42.6 million . In Fiscal 2013, total net square footage increased by approximately 188,000
square feet, or approximately 3%, to approximately 5.9 million square feet, as compared to 5.7 million square feet at the end of Fiscal 2012.

In Fiscal 2014, we plan to open approximately 50 new stores in the United States and Canada and close approximately 30 U.S. stores, leading to net
store growth of approximately 20 stores. In addition, we plan to optimize the size of an additional 11 stores. Total net square footage is expected to increase
approximately 65,000 square feet, or approximately 1.0%, as compared to Fiscal 2013. Fiscal 2014 capital expenditures are expected to be approximately $40
million for new stores and approximately $50 million for store remodeling and refurbishment projects. Our store expansion and refurbishment plans are
dependent upon, among other things, general economic and business conditions affecting consumer confidence and spending, the availability of desirable
locations and the negotiation of acceptable lease terms. See “Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our Ann Taylor (“AT”), LOFT, Ann Taylor Factory (“ATF”) and LOFT Outlet (“LOS”)
retail stores over the past three fiscal years:

LOFT Brand

Ann Taylor Brand

Store Count

ATF

AT

Total

LOFT

LOS

Total

Total

266

92

358

502

36

538

New

17

7

24

14

38

52

76

Closed

(3)

—

(3)

(16)

—

(16)

(19)

January 29, 2011

January 28, 2012

896

280

99

379

500

74

574

New (1)

11

3

14

26

23

49

63

Closed

(16)

(1)

(17)

(14)

(15)

(32)

February 2, 2013

(1)

953

275

101

376

512

96

608

New (1)

7

7

14

38

14

52

66

Closed

(14)

—

(14)

(11)

—

(11)

(25)

February 1, 2014

268

376

108

539

110

649

984

1,025

(1) During Fiscal 2013, we opened two Ann Taylor stores and five LOFT stores in Canada. During Fiscal 2012, we opened two Ann Taylor

stores and one LOFT store in Canada.
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We believe that our stores are located in some of the most productive retail centers in the United States and that our existing store base is a significant
strategic asset of our business. During the past three years, we have invested approximately $331.4 million in our store base and approximately 70% of our
stores are either new or have been expanded, downsized, remodeled or refurbished.

Store design and environment
Our Ann Taylor stores average approximately 5,000 square feet. During Fiscal 2013 , we continued to roll out our new smaller format Ann Taylor stores,
adding seven new smaller format stores, downsizing or remodeling another 13 stores, and updating an additional 18 stores. As a result of these capital
investments, approximately 80% of our store fleet reflects our modern aspirational brand aesthetic. In Fiscal 2014 , we plan to build on this by opening
approximately five new Ann Taylor stores and downsizing and/or remodeling approximately 10 additional stores.

Our LOFT stores average approximately 5,700 square feet. We operate one LOFT flagship store on the ground floor of 7 Times Square, our corporate
headquarters, in New York City. At LOFT, we continued to execute our store growth program, which included a strategy of expanding into small- and midmarkets, opening 38 new LOFT stores and rightsizing and/or remodeling 35 additional stores in Fiscal 2013 . In Fiscal 2014 , we plan to open approximately 20
LOFT stores and downsize and/or remodel approximately 30 additional stores.

Our Ann Taylor Factory stores average approximately 6,800 square feet and our LOFT Outlet stores average approximately 6,600 square feet. In Fiscal
2013, we continued to grow our outlet fleet, opening seven new Ann Taylor Factory stores and 14 new LOFT Outlet stores. In Fiscal 2014, we plan to further
grow our factory outlet presence, and open approximately five new Ann Taylor Factory stores and 20 new LOFT Outlet stores.
Our stores typically have approximately 25% of their total square footage allocated to stockroom and other non-selling space.

Websites
Our Websites reinforce the unique aesthetic of our Ann Taylor and LOFT brands and are designed to complement the in-store experience we deliver to our
clients. We offer our clients a high-quality online shopping experience, from merchandise availability and website design to order fulfillment and client service.
We are committed to building a seamless, omni-channel experience for our clients and view our Websites as a key enabler of this strategy. As such, in Fiscal
2012, we implemented the first phase of our omni-channel initiative, which enabled store fulfillment of online sales. In Fiscal 2013, we launched international
shipping capabilities to more than 100 countries worldwide, providing clients outside the United States access to our brands. We also implemented e-receipt
technology and made significant enhancements to our search engine optimization program to further enhance the online shopping experience. We continue to
explore opportunities to further improve speed, navigation and our overall online shopping experience and expect further integration of our Websites to be a
major contributor to the future growth of our Ann Taylor and LOFT brands.

Merchandise Design and Production

Substantially all of our merchandise is developed by our in-house product design and development teams, who design merchandise exclusively for us.
Our merchandising groups determine inventory needs for the upcoming season, edit the assortments developed by the design teams, plan merchandise flows
and arrange for the production of merchandise by independent manufacturers, primarily through our in-house sourcing group. We also complement our inhouse assortments by purchasing a small percentage of merchandise from branded vendors.

Our production management and quality assurance departments establish the technical specifications for all merchandise and inspect our merchandise
for quality, including periodic in-line inspections while goods are in production, to identify potential problems prior to shipment. Upon receipt, merchandise is
inspected on a test basis for uniformity of size and color, as well as for conformity with specifications and overall quality of manufacturing.
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In Fiscal 2013, we sourced merchandise for our Ann Taylor and LOFT brands from approximately 133 manufacturers and vendors in 17 countries,
and no single supplier accounted for more than 10% of merchandise purchased on either a unit or cost basis. Approximately 37% of our merchandise unit
purchases originated in China (representing approximately 40% of total merchandise cost), 17% in Indonesia (17% of total merchandise cost), 15% in India
(14% of total merchandise cost), 13% in Vietnam (7% of total merchandise cost) and 11% in the Philippines (15% of total merchandise cost). Any event
causing a sudden disruption of manufacturing or imports from any of these countries, including the imposition of additional import restrictions, could have a
material adverse effect on our operations. However, we generally do not maintain any long-term or exclusive commitments or arrangements to purchase
merchandise with any single supplier. In addition, all of our foreign purchases are negotiated and paid for in U.S. dollars.
We have a supply chain compliance program that requires our suppliers, factories and authorized subcontractors to comply with our Global Supplier
Principles and Guidelines, as well as the local laws and regulations in the country of manufacture. We conduct unannounced third-party audits to confirm
manufacturer adherence to our compliance standards. We are also a certified and validated member of the United States Customs and Border Protection’s
Customs-Trade Partnership Against Terrorism (“C-TPAT”) program and expect all of our suppliers shipping to the United States to adhere to our C-TPAT
requirements. These include standards relating to facility security, procedural security, personnel security, cargo security and the overall protection of the
supply chain. Third-party audits are conducted to confirm supplier compliance with our standards.

We believe we have solid relationships with our suppliers and that, subject to the discussion in “Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources,” we will continue to have adequate sources to produce a
sufficient supply of quality merchandise in a timely manner and on satisfactory economic terms.
Inventory Control and Merchandise Allocation

Our planning departments analyze relevant historical product demand data (i.e., sales, margins, sales and inventory history of store clusters, etc.) by
brand, size and store location, including our Websites, to assist in determining the quantity of merchandise to be purchased for, and the allocation of
merchandise to, our channels. Merchandise is allocated to achieve an emphasis that is suited to each store’s client base, including our Websites. We also
consider the effect our omni-channel initiative has had on in-store and online inventory levels in order to better inform our merchandise purchases and
inventory allocation.

Merchandise is typically sold at its original marked price for several weeks, with the length of time varying by individual style or color choice and
dependent on client acceptance. From time to time, we also run point-of-sale promotions which may apply to both full-price and markdown merchandise and
temporarily reduce the merchandise selling price. We review inventory levels on an ongoing basis to identify slow-moving merchandise styles and broken
assortments (items no longer in stock in a sufficient range of sizes) and use markdowns to clear this merchandise. Markdowns may also be used if inventory
levels exceed client demand for reasons of design, seasonal adaptation or changes in client preference. Substantially all of our merchandise inventory is cleared
in-store or through our Websites.

Our core merchandising system is the central repository for inventory data and related business activities that affect inventory levels, such as
purchasing, receiving, allocation and distribution. Our primary distribution center is located in Louisville, Kentucky, as discussed further in “Properties.”
The majority of our merchandise is processed through our Louisville facility, which we own and operate. Additionally, we contract with third-party fulfillment
vendors, utilizing a Bolingbrook, IL facility to fulfill online orders and a Toronto, Ontario facility for merchandise allocation to our Canadian stores. We also
utilize a third-party distribution center bypass facility in Industry, CA. While a portion of our merchandise is processed through this bypass facility for direct
distribution to our stores, it serves primarily as a trans-loading facility and a back-up distribution center in the event of a disaster.
Brand Building and Marketing

We believe that our Ann Taylor and LOFT brands are among our most important assets and that these brands and their relationship with our clients are
key to our competitive advantage. Our focus on continually evolving our brands to appeal to the changing needs of our clients helps us stay relevant and
competitive in the women’s retail apparel industry.

We manage all aspects of brand development for our retail concepts, including product design, store design and merchandising and brand marketing
and advertising. We continue to invest in the development of our brands through client research and outreach, as well as in-store and direct marketing
campaigns. We make strategic investments to optimize the overall client experience by focusing on client service, as well as opening new stores, reinvesting in
existing stores and enhancing the online shopping experience at our Websites. In addition, we continue to build on our omni-channel retail strategy by making
focused investments to support this initiative.
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We believe it is essential to communicate on a regular basis with our current client base and potential clients by telling each brand’s story through
aspirational national and regional advertising, as well as through compelling direct mail marketing and in-store presentation. Marketing expenditures as a
percentage of net sales were 4.4% in Fiscal 2013 , 4.1% in Fiscal 2012 and 4.0% in Fiscal 2011.
Client Relationship Management

We have a credit card program that offers eligible clients in the United States the choice of a private label or co-branded credit card. All new
cardmembers are automatically enrolled in our exclusive rewards program, which is designed to recognize and promote client loyalty. Both cards can be used
at any Ann Taylor or LOFT location or channel of distribution, including Ann Taylor Factory, LOFT Outlet and our Websites. The co-branded credit card
can also be used at any other business where the card is accepted. Both the private label and co-branded credit cards are offered in an Ann Taylor and LOFT
version, depending upon where a client enrolls in the program; however, the core benefits offered to clients are the same.

To encourage clients to apply for a credit card, we provide a discount to approved cardmembers on all purchases made with a new card on the day of
application acceptance. Rewards points are earned on purchases made with the credit card at either of our brands through any of our channels. Co-branded
cardmembers also earn points on purchases made at other businesses where our card is accepted. Cardmembers who accumulate the requisite number of
points are issued a Rewards Card redeemable toward a future purchase.
We are focused on building on our client service through a client relationship management initiative designed to deliver a more personalized and relevant
shopping experience for our Ann Taylor and LOFT clients. We are increasingly engaging clients through more targeted and personalized outreach, both at our
full-price and outlet channels, to provide an optimal omni-channel shopping experience, establish stronger relationships and further enhance the efficiency of
our marketing programs.

Information Systems
During Fiscal 2013 , we continued our investment in information services and technology, enhancing the systems we use to support our Websites and
omni-channel capabilities, as well as our international expansion, merchandise procurement, inventory management and order fulfillment processes. These
enhancements are generally aimed at optimizing the client experience, driving sales, improving client access to merchandise assortments and back-office
efficiencies.

Trademarks, Domain Names and Service Marks

The “Ann Taylor®,” “LOFT®,” “Ann Taylor LOFT®” and other proprietary marks are registered with the United States Patent and Trademark
Office and with the trademark registries of many foreign countries. Our rights in these marks are a significant part of our business strategy, as we believe they
are famous and well-known in the women’s apparel industry. Accordingly, we intend to maintain our trademarks and related registrations and vigorously
protect them against infringement.
Competition

The women’s retail apparel industry is highly competitive. We compete with certain departments in international, national and local department stores
and with other specialty retail stores, catalog and Internet businesses that offer similar categories of merchandise. We believe that our focused fashion point of

view, product versatility and strong client service distinguish us from other women’s apparel retailers. Our competitors range from smaller, growing
companies to considerably larger players with substantially greater financial, marketing and other resources. While we are vigilant to maintain our
competitiveness, there is, of course, no assurance that we will be able to compete successfully with them in the future. See “Risk Factors.”

Associate Relations

As of February 1, 2014 , we had approximately 19,800 employees , of which approximately 2,150 were full-time salaried employees , 2,400 were fulltime hourly employees and 15,250 were part-time hourly employees working less than 30 hours per week. None of our employees are represented by a labor
union. We believe that our relationship with our employees is good.
Responsibly ANN

We are committed to operating our business responsibly and thoughtfully, and continue to set high standards and forge strong partnerships with our
suppliers to ensure that our products are made in a socially and environmentally responsible manner. In addition, we try to make meaningful contributions to
our communities and seek to minimize our impact on the environment by investing in new programs and innovations. Our brands reflect our passion for
playing an active role in making the world a better place and we take pride in supporting causes that are important to our clients and our associates.
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Available Information
We make available free of charge on our website, http://investor.anninc.com, copies of our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are filed electronically with, or otherwise furnished to, the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission. Copies of the charters of each of our Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee, as well as our Corporate Governance Guidelines and Business Conduct Guidelines, are also available on our website.

ITEM 1A.

Risk Factors.

Set forth below is a summary of the material risks to an investment in our securities, which should be considered carefully in evaluating such an
investment. These are not the only risks our Company faces. We may also be adversely affected by additional risks not presently known to us or that we
currently deem immaterial. If any of the risks were to materialize, our business, results of operations, cash flows or financial condition may be materially
adversely impacted , which might cause the value of our securities to decline. Please also see “Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Disclosures” in the
section immediately preceding Item 1 of this Report.

Our ability to anticipate and respond to changing client preferences and fashion trends in a timely manner
Our success largely depends on our ability to consistently gauge fashion trends and provide a balanced assortment of merchandise that satisfies client
demands for each of our brands in a timely manner. Any missteps may affect inventory levels, since we enter into agreements to manufacture and purchase
our merchandise well in advance of the applicable selling season. Our failure to anticipate, identify or react appropriately in a timely manner to changes in
fashion trends and economic conditions could lead to missed opportunities, excess inventory and more frequent markdowns or inventory shortages, all of
which could negatively impact sales and gross margin performance and have a material adverse effect on our business. Merchandise missteps could also
negatively impact our image with our clients and result in diminished brand loyalty.

Our ability to maintain our brand image, engage new and existing clients and gain market share
Our ability to maintain our brand image and reputation is integral to our business as well as the implementation of strategies to expand it. Maintaining,
promoting and growing our brands will depend largely on the success of our design, merchandising and marketing efforts and our ability to provide a
consistent, high-quality client experience. In addition, while our brands are mature and we have extensive client lists, our success depends, in part, on our
ability to keep existing clients engaged and attract new clients to shop our brands. Our business could be adversely affected if we fail to achieve these
objectives for either or both of our brands and failure to achieve consistent, positive performance at both of our brands simultaneously could have an adverse
effect on our sales and profitability. In addition, our ability to address the challenges of declining store traffic, including at factory outlet centers, in a highly
promotional, low growth environment may impact our ability to maintain and gain market share and also impact our sales and profitability.

The effect of competitive pressures from other retailers
The specialty retail industry is highly competitive. We compete with local, national and international department stores, specialty and discount stores,
catalogs and internet businesses offering similar categories of merchandise. We face a variety of competitive challenges, including anticipating and quickly
responding to changing client demands or preferences; maintaining favorable brand recognition and effectively marketing our products to our clients in several
diverse demographic markets; sourcing merchandise efficiently; and developing innovative, high-quality merchandise in styles that appeal to our clients in
ways that favorably distinguish us from our competitors. In addition, many of our competitors are companies with substantially greater financial, marketing
and other resources. Increased levels of promotional activity by our competitors, some of which may be able to adopt more aggressive pricing policies than we
can, both online and in stores, may negatively impact our sales and profitability. There is no assurance that we can compete successfully with these
companies in the future.
In addition to competing for sales, we compete for favorable store locations, lease terms and qualified associates. Increased competition in these areas
may result in higher costs, which could reduce our operating margins and adversely affect our results of operations.
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Our reliance on key management and our ability to attract and retain qualified associates
Our success depends to a significant extent upon both the continued services of our current executive and senior management team, as well as our ability
to attract, hire, motivate and retain qualified management talent in the future. Our senior executive officers have substantial experience and expertise in the retail
business and have made significant contributions to the growth and success of our brands. Competition for key executives in the retail industry is intense;
and our operations could be adversely affected if we cannot retain our key executives or if we fail to attract additional qualified individuals.

Our performance also depends in large part on the talents and contributions of engaged and skilled associates in all areas of our organization. If we are
unable to identify, hire, develop, motivate and retain talented individuals, we may be unable to compete effectively and our business could be adversely
impacted.

Our ability to successfully optimize implementation of our omni-channel retail strategy and maintain a relevant and reliable omni-channel
experience for our clients
We are committed to growing our business through a omni-channel retail strategy. Our goal is to assist our clients in accessing our brands whenever and
wherever they choose to shop. In support of this goal, we successfully launched the first phase of our omni-channel initiative during the third quarter of Fiscal

2012, allowing store order fulfillment of internet sales. Our success depends to a large degree on our ability to plan and manage inventory levels and the
fulfillment of orders, address operational issues in stores and online and further align both channels to optimize our omni-channel retail strategy.
In addition, our success also depends on our ability to anticipate and implement innovations in sales and marketing technology to appeal to existing and
potential clients who increasingly rely on multiple portals, including mobile technologies, to meet their shopping needs. Failure to enhance our technology and
marketing efforts to align with our clients’ shopping preferences could significantly impair our ability to meet our strategic business and financial goals. If we
do not successfully optimize the implementation of our omni-channel retail strategy or if it does not achieve its intended results, we may experience an adverse
impact on our business.

Our ability to manage inventory levels and changes in merchandise mix as well as optimize the operational aspects of our omni-channel
fulfillment strategy
The long lead times required for a substantial portion of our merchandise make client demand difficult to predict and responding quickly to changes
challenging. Though we have the ability to source certain product categories with shorter lead times, we enter into contracts for a substantial portion of our
merchandise well in advance of the applicable selling season. Our financial condition could be materially adversely affected if we are unable to manage
inventory levels and respond to short-term shifts in client demand patterns. Inventory levels in excess of client demand may result in excessive markdowns
and, therefore, lower than planned sales and gross margin. On the other hand, if we underestimate demand for our merchandise, we may experience inventory
shortages resulting in missed sales and lost revenues. Either of these events could significantly affect our operating results and brand image. Our margins may
also be impacted by changes in our merchandise mix and a shift toward merchandise with lower selling prices. These changes could have a material adverse
effect on our operating results.
In addition, our omni-channel fulfillment strategy, which aims to help optimize the client experience, improve merchandising decisions and support our
omni-channel operations, creates additional complexities in our ability to manage inventory levels, as well as certain operational issues in stores and online,
including packaging, shipping, timeliness and returns. If we are unable to successfully manage the inventory complexities and operational issues associated
with our omni-channel fulfillment strategy, we may experience an adverse impact on our business.

Our ability to successfully upgrade and maintain our information systems in a timely and secure manner to support the needs of the organization
We rely heavily on information systems to manage our operations, including a full range of retail, financial, sourcing and merchandising systems. We
regularly make investments to upgrade, enhance or replace these systems, as well as leverage new technologies to support our growth strategies. In addition, we
have implemented enterprise-wide initiatives that are intended to standardize business processes and optimize performance. Any delays or difficulties in
transitioning to new systems or integrating them with current systems or the failure to implement our initiatives in an orderly and timely fashion could result in
additional investment of time and resources, which could impair our ability to improve existing operations and support future growth, and ultimately have a
material adverse effect on our business.
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The reliability and capacity of our information systems are critical. Despite preventative efforts, our systems are vulnerable from time-to-time to damage
or interruption from, among other things, natural disasters, technical malfunctions, inadequate systems capacity, human error, power outages, computer
viruses and security breaches. Any disruptions affecting our information systems could have a material adverse impact on our business. In addition, any
failure to maintain adequate system security controls to protect our computer assets and sensitive data, including associate and client data, from unauthorized
access, disclosure or use could damage our reputation with our associates and our clients. Finally, our ability to continue to operate our business without
significant interruption in the event of a disaster or other disruption depends, in part, on the ability of our information systems to operate in accordance with
our disaster recovery and business continuity plans.

As a component of our ongoing strategy to increase efficiencies, monitor costs and improve our information technology capabilities, we rely on third
parties for products and implementation and/or management of certain aspects of our information systems and infrastructure. Many of the functions that are
performed by third parties are performed in offshore locations. Our agreements with those third parties require them to maintain certain levels of care and
security with respect to our information systems and our data. Failure by any of these third parties to implement and/or manage our information systems and
infrastructure effectively and securely could disrupt our operations, adversely affect our clients’ shopping experience and negatively impact our profitability.
Furthermore, the use of offshore service providers may expose us to risks related to local political, economic, social or environmental conditions (including
acts of terrorism, the outbreak of war or the occurrence of natural disasters), restrictive actions by foreign governments or changes in United States laws and
regulations.

Risks associated with Internet sales
We sell merchandise over the Internet through our Websites. Our Internet operations are subject to numerous risks, including:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

the failure to successfully implement new systems, system enhancements and Internet platforms, including our omni-channel and online
international order fulfillment and enhanced mobile capability;
the failure of the computer systems that operate our websites and their related support systems, causing, among other things, website downtimes and
other technical failures;
the reliance on third-party computer hardware/software providers;
the reliance on third-party order fulfillment providers;
rapid technological change;
the diversion of sales from our stores;
liability for online content;
violations of federal, state, foreign or other applicable laws, including those relating to online privacy;
credit card fraud; and
telecommunications failures and vulnerability to electronic break-ins and other similar disruptions.

Our failure to successfully address and respond to these risks could negatively impact sales, increase costs and damage the reputation of our brands.

The impact of a privacy breach and the resulting effect on our business and reputation
We rely heavily on digital technologies for the successful operation of our business, including electronic messaging, digital marketing efforts and the
collection and retention of client data and associate information. We also rely on other third parties to process credit card transactions, perform online ecommerce and social media activities and retain data relating to the Company’s financial position and results of operations, strategic initiatives and other
important information. Despite the robust security measures we have in place, our facilities and systems, and those of our third-party service providers, may
be vulnerable to cyber-security breaches, acts of vandalism, computer viruses, misplaced or lost data, programming and/or human errors or other similar
events. Any misappropriation, loss or other unauthorized disclosure of confidential or personally identifiable information, whether by us or by our third-party
service providers, could adversely affect our business and operations, including severely damaging our reputation and our relationships with our clients,
associates and investors and expose us to risks of litigation and liability.
In addition, we may incur significant remediation costs in the event of a cyber-security breach or incident, including liability for stolen client or associate
information, repairing system damage or providing credit monitoring or other benefits to affected clients or associates. We may also incur increased costs to
comply with various applicable laws or industry standards regarding use and/or unauthorized disclosure of personal information. These and other cybersecurity-related compliance, prevention and remediation costs may adversely impact our financial condition and results of operations.
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Our reliance on third-party manufacturers and key vendors
We do not own or operate any manufacturing facilities, and therefore, depend on independent third parties to manufacture our merchandise. As such, we
face the risk of increased manufacturing costs and cannot be certain that we will not experience operational difficulties with our manufacturers, such as
reductions in the availability of production capacity, errors in complying with merchandise specifications, insufficient quality control and failure to meet
production deadlines. In addition, we source our merchandise from a select group of manufacturers and continue to strengthen our relationships with these key
vendors. While this strategy has benefits, it also has risks. If one or more of our key vendors were to cease working with us, the flow of merchandise to our
stores and clients could be impacted, which could have a material adverse effect on our sales and results of operations. In addition, we cannot predict the
impact of world-wide political or economic conditions on our major suppliers. Our suppliers may be unable to obtain adequate credit or access to liquidity to
finance their operations. Our suppliers also continue to face economic pressure as a result of rising wages and inflation, which could lead to vendor
consolidation. While we have contingency plans for such potential risks, a manufacturer’s failure to continue working with us, to ship merchandise to us on a
timely basis or to meet the required product safety, quality and social compliance standards could cause supply shortages, failure to meet client expectations
and damage to our brands.

The effect of fluctuations in sourcing costs
The raw materials used to manufacture our merchandise are subject to availability constraints and price volatility caused by high or low demand for
fabrics, labor conditions, transportation or freight costs, currency fluctuations, weather conditions, supply conditions, government regulations, inflation and
economic, climate and other unpredictable factors. We take steps to mitigate sourcing pressures from fluctuating raw material costs by making advance
commitments on key core fabrics when required, leveraging our strong vendor relationships and using country sourcing flexibility. Despite these measures, an
increase in the demand for, the price of and/or a decrease in the availability of the raw materials used to manufacture our merchandise could have a material
adverse effect on our cost of sales or our ability to meet our clients’ expectations. Additionally, increases in labor costs, as well as a shortage of skilled labor in
certain areas of China, may also impact our sourcing costs. The cost of transportation has also been increasing, and these cost pressures are likely to persist.
We may not be able to pass all or a portion of such higher sourcing costs onto our clients, which could negatively impact our profitability.

Our reliance on foreign sources of production
We purchase a significant portion of our merchandise from foreign suppliers. As a result, we are subject to various risks of doing business in foreign
markets and importing merchandise from abroad, such as:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

fluctuation in the value of the U.S. dollar against foreign currencies or restrictions on the transfer of funds to and from foreign countries;
foreign laws and regulations;
imposition of new legislation relating to import quotas or other restrictions that may limit the quantity of our merchandise that may be imported into
the United States or Canada from countries in regions where our merchandise is manufactured;
significant delays or disruptions in the delivery of cargo due to port security issues, labor disputes or shortages, local business practices or weather
conditions;
imposition of duties, taxes and other charges on imports or exports;
imposition of anti-dumping or countervailing duties in response to an investigation as to whether a particular product being sold in the United States
or Canada at less than fair value may cause (or threaten to cause) material injury to the relevant domestic industry;
financial or political instability or terrorist acts in any of the countries in which our merchandise is manufactured or the transportation channels
through which it passes;

•

the impact of natural disasters, extreme weather, public health concerns or other catastrophes on our foreign sourcing offices and vendor
manufacturing operations;
potential cancellation of orders or recalls of any merchandise that does not meet our product safety and quality standards or is not manufactured in

•

accordance with our social compliance requirements; and
increased security requirements applicable to imported goods and increased inspections of import shipments by domestic authorities.

•

Any sudden disruptions in the manufacture or import of our merchandise caused by adverse changes in these or any other factors could increase the
cost or reduce the supply of merchandise available to us and adversely affect our reputation, business, financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.
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Our dependence on our Louisville distribution center and other third-party distribution and transportation providers
Our wholly-owned and operated primary distribution center in Louisville, Kentucky manages the receipt, storage, sorting, packing and distribution of
the majority of merchandise to our stores. We also utilize third-party distribution facilities in City of Industry, California and Toronto, Canada for distribution
support to our stores. In addition, sales at our Websites are primarily processed by a third-party fulfillment provider with facilities in Bolingbrook, Illinois.
Independent third-party transportation companies then deliver merchandise from these facilities to our stores and/or our clients. Any significant interruption in
the operation of our Louisville distribution center or our third-party distribution, fulfillment or transportation providers for any reason, including as a result of
natural disasters, accidents, inclement weather, system failures, work stoppages, slowdowns or strikes or other unforeseen causes, could adversely impact
our business by delaying or impairing our ability to distribute merchandise to our stores and/or our clients. These interruptions could result in, among other
things, inventory issues, increased costs, lower sales and a loss of loyalty to our brands.

Our ability to execute brand extensions and other growth strategies, including international expansion

Part of our business strategy is to grow our existing brands and identify and develop new growth opportunities. The launch of new merchandise
offerings or concepts may require significant capital expenditures and management oversight. Any such plan is subject to risks, such as client acceptance,
competition and product differentiation. There is no assurance that these merchandise offerings or concepts will be successful or that our overall profitability
will increase as a result. In addition, if we fail to properly execute our plans, or fail to identify alternative strategies, it could have a material adverse effect on
our financial position and results of operations.
Our growth strategy may also include plans to develop new strategic partnerships as well as expand our presence in both new and existing markets,
including international markets, as we did in late 2012 with the opening of our first stores in Canada and the introduction of international shipping
capabilities at our Websites in the first quarter of 2013. We have very limited experience operating outside of the United States, where we may face established

competitors. International markets also present unique risks, including different operational characteristics in the areas of employment and labor,
transportation, logistics, real estate, finance and law. Furthermore, consumer demand and behavior, as well as preferences and purchasing trends, may differ.
Other challenges may include general economic conditions in specific countries or markets, disruptions or delays in shipments, changes in diplomatic and
trade relationships, political instability and foreign governmental regulation. As a result of these and other factors, our efforts to enter foreign markets may not
be successful, or the sales and gross margin generated by our foreign operations may not be in line with our expectations. In addition, international expansion,

including any difficulties that we may encounter if we were to expand to other international markets, may divert financial, operational and managerial
resources from our existing operations and/or require us to increase our costs to manage such expansion, which could adversely impact our financial condition
and results of operations.

In addition, as we continue to implement our plans for international expansion, we are subject to certain U.S. laws, including the Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act, as well as to the laws of the foreign countries in which we operate. We must use all commercially reasonable efforts to ensure compliance with
these laws. Any violations of such laws could subject us to sanctions or other penalties, which could negatively affect our reputation, business and operating
results.

Our ability to secure and protect trademarks and other intellectual property rights
We believe that our trademarks and other intellectual property rights are critical to our success. Even though we register and defend our trademarks and
other intellectual property rights, there is no assurance that our actions will protect us from the prior registration by others or prevent others from infringing our
trademarks and intellectual property rights or seeking to block sales of our products as infringements of their trademarks and intellectual property rights.
Further, the laws of foreign countries may not protect intellectual property rights to the same extent as do the laws of the United States. Because we have not

registered without opposition all of our trademarks in all categories, or in all foreign countries in which we currently manufacture merchandise or may
manufacture or sell merchandise in the future, our ability to source merchandise from international suppliers or pursue international expansion could be
negatively impacted. Any litigation regarding our trademarks could be time-consuming and costly. Moreover, the loss of exclusive use of our trademarks and
other proprietary rights could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Failure to comply with legal and regulatory requirements
Our business is subject to legal and regulatory requirements in the United States and abroad, including, without limitation, those required by the SEC,
the New York Stock Exchange, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and securities, tax, employment and anti-bribery laws and regulations. In addition, in the
future, there may be new legal or regulatory requirements or more stringent interpretations of applicable requirements, which could increase the complexity of
the regulatory environment in which we operate and the related cost of compliance.
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While it is our policy and practice to comply with all legal and regulatory requirements and while our procedures and internal controls are designed to
ensure such compliance, a finding that we or our vendors or agents are out of compliance with applicable laws and regulations could subject us to civil
remedies or criminal sanctions, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, reputation and stock price. In addition, even the claim of a
violation of applicable laws or regulations could negatively affect our reputation.

The effect of general economic conditions
Our financial performance is dependent on consumer confidence and levels of consumer spending, which may remain volatile for the foreseeable future.
Some of the factors impacting consumer confidence and discretionary consumer spending include, but are not limited to: general economic conditions; fiscal
and monetary policies of governments; wages and unemployment; consumer debt; reductions in net worth based on market declines or declines in the
residential real estate and mortgage markets; tax policies; increases in fuel and energy prices; changes in interest rates and the domestic and international
political environment. Consumer purchases of discretionary items, including our merchandise, generally decline during recessionary periods and other periods
where disposable income is adversely affected. A downturn in the economy could affect consumer purchases of our merchandise and lead to excess inventory
levels, which could adversely impact our liquidity, capital resources, results of operations and continued growth.

In addition, as a result of the instability in the global financial markets, there is continued diminished liquidity and credit availability and there can be
no assurance that our liquidity will not be affected or that our capital resources will at all times be sufficient to satisfy our liquidity needs. Although we believe
that our existing cash and cash equivalents, cash provided by operations and available borrowing capacity under our revolving credit facility will be adequate
to satisfy our capital needs for the foreseeable future, any renewed tightening of the credit markets could make it more difficult for us to access funds, enter
into agreements for new indebtedness or obtain funding through the issuance of our securities. Our revolving credit facility also has financial covenants and
certain restrictions which, if not met, may further impede our ability to access funds.
We also have significant amounts of cash and cash equivalents on deposit at FDIC-insured financial institutions that are currently in excess of federally
insured limits and therefore, we cannot be assured that we will not experience losses with respect to cash on deposit in excess of such limits.

The impact of fluctuations in sales and profitability on our stock price

A variety of factors have historically affected, and will continue to affect, our comparable sales results and profit margins. These factors include
fashion trends and client preferences, changes in our merchandise mix, competition, economic conditions, extreme or unseasonable weather, effective
inventory management and new store openings, among other things. There is no assurance that we will achieve positive levels of sales and earnings growth and
any decline in our future growth or performance could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock.

Our stock price has experienced, and could continue to experience in the future, substantial volatility as a result of many factors, including global
economic conditions, broad market fluctuations, our operating performance and public perception of the prospects for our brands or for the women’s apparel
industry in general. Failure to meet market expectations, particularly with respect to comparable sales, net revenue, operating margins and earnings per share,
could result in a decline in the market value of our stock.

Effects of natural disasters, war, terrorism, public health concerns or other catastrophes
Natural disasters, extreme weather and public health concerns, including severe infectious diseases, could impact our ability to open and run our
corporate offices, distribution center, stores and other operations in affected areas and/or negatively impact our foreign sourcing offices and the operations of
our vendors. In addition, our ability to continue to operate our business without significant interruption in the event of a disaster or other disruption depends,
in part, on the ability of our information systems to operate in accordance with our disaster recovery and business continuity plans. Lower client traffic due to
the effect of natural disasters or extreme weather, security concerns, war or the threat of war and public health concerns could result in decreased sales that
could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, threat of terrorist attacks or actual terrorist
events in the United States and world-wide could cause damage or disruption to international commerce and the global economy, disrupt the production,
shipment or receipt of our merchandise or lead to lower client traffic. Our ability to mitigate the adverse impact of these events depends, in part, upon the
effectiveness of our disaster preparedness and response planning as well as business continuity planning. However, we cannot be certain that our plans will be
adequate or implemented properly in the event of an actual disaster or other catastrophic situation. In addition, although we maintain business interruption and
property insurance, there can be no assurance that our insurance coverage will be sufficient, or that insurance proceeds will be timely paid to us.
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Manufacturer compliance with our social compliance program requirements
We require our independent manufacturers to comply with all applicable laws and regulations, as well as our Global Supplier Principles and Guidelines,
which cover many areas, including labor, health, safety, environmental and other legal standards. We monitor compliance with these Guidelines using thirdparty monitoring firms. Although we have an active program to provide training for our independent manufacturers and monitor their compliance with these
standards, we do not control the manufacturers or their practices. Any failure of our independent manufacturers to comply with our Global Supplier Principles
and Guidelines or labor or other local laws in the country of manufacture, or the divergence of an independent manufacturer’s labor practices from those
generally accepted as ethical in the United States, could disrupt the shipment of merchandise to our stores, force us to locate alternative manufacturing
sources, reduce demand for our merchandise and/or damage our reputation. Any of these events could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our ability to successfully manage store growth and optimize the productivity and profitability of our store portfolio
Our continued growth and success depend, in part, on our ability to successfully open and operate new stores, enhance and remodel existing stores on a
timely and profitable basis and optimize store performance by closing under-performing stores. Accomplishing our store expansion goals in the United States
and Canada, and planned expansion into other markets, depends upon a number of factors, including locating suitable sites and negotiating favorable lease
terms. We must also be able to effectively renew and renegotiate lease terms for existing stores. Managing the profitability of our stores and optimizing store
productivity also depends, in large part, on the continued success and client acceptance of our Ann Taylor and LOFT store formats, as well as our ability to
achieve planned store growth for our brands in Fiscal 2014 and beyond. Hiring and training qualified associates, particularly at the store management level,
maintaining overall good relations with our associates and vendors and managing inventory and distribution effectively to meet the needs of new and existing
clients on a timely basis are also important to our store operations. There is no assurance that we will achieve our store expansion goals, manage our growth
effectively or operate our stores profitably. In addition, the inability to achieve acceptable results in new and existing stores could lead to store closures and/or
asset impairment charges, which could adversely affect our results of operations and our ability to grow.

Our dependence on shopping malls and other retail centers to attract clients to our stores and ability to negotiate acceptable lease terms

Many of our stores are located in shopping malls and other retail centers that benefit from the ability of “anchor” retail tenants, generally large
department stores, and other attractions, to generate sufficient levels of consumer traffic in the vicinity of our stores. Any decline in the volume of consumer
traffic at shopping centers, whether because of the economic slowdown, a decline in the popularity of shopping centers, the closing of anchor stores or
otherwise, could result in reduced sales at our stores and excess inventory. We may have to respond by increasing markdowns or initiating marketing
promotions to reduce excess inventory, which could have a material adverse effect on our operating results.
In addition, continued consolidation in the commercial retail real estate market could affect our ability to successfully negotiate favorable rental terms for
our stores in the future. Should significant consolidation continue, a large proportion of our store base could be concentrated with one or a few entities that
could then be in a position to dictate unfavorable terms to us due to their significant negotiating leverage. If we are unable to negotiate favorable lease terms with
these entities, this could affect our ability to profitably operate our stores, which could adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The effect of tax matters on our business operations.
We are subject to income taxes in the United States and foreign jurisdictions. Our provision for income taxes and cash tax liability in the future could be
adversely affected by numerous factors including, but not limited to, changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, changes in tax laws and
regulations and accounting rules and regulations or interpretations thereof, which could adversely impact our results of operations, financial condition and
cash flow in future periods. In addition, we are subject to the examination of our income tax returns by various tax authorities. We regularly assess the
likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for income taxes. There can be no assurance that
the outcome of these examinations will not have an adverse effect on our provision for income taxes and cash tax liability.

ITEM 1B.

Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.
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ITEM 2.

Properties.

As of February 1, 2014 , we operated 1,025 retail stores in 47 states, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico and Canada, all of which were leased. Store
leases typically provide for initial terms of 10 years, although some leases have shorter or longer initial periods. A majority of our store leases grant us the right

to extend the term for one or two additional five-year periods, and also contain early termination options, which can be exercised by us under specific
conditions. Most of the store leases also require us to pay a specified minimum rent, plus a contingent rent based on a percentage of the store’s net sales in
excess of a specified threshold. In addition, most of the leases require us to pay real estate taxes, insurance and certain common area and maintenance costs.
The current terms of our leases expire as follows:
Fiscal Years Lease
Terms Expire

Number of
Stores

462
250
229

2014 - 2016
2017 - 2019
2020 - 2022
2023 and later

84

We lease our corporate offices at 7 Times Square in New York City (approximately 308,000 square feet) under a lease expiring in 2020. In addition, we
maintain 42,000 square feet of office space in Milford, Connecticut, und er a lease that expires in 2019. Both of these leases grant us the right to extend the term
for two additional five-year periods.

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, AnnTaylor Distribution Services, Inc., owns our 256,000 square foot distribution center located in
Louisville, Kentucky. The distribution center is located on approximately 27 acres, which could accommodate possible future expansion of the facility. The
majority of our merchandise is distributed to stores through this facility.
ITEM 3.

Legal Proceedings.

We are subject to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of our business. Although the amount of any liability that could
arise with respect to these actions cannot be determined with certainty, in our opinion, any such liability will not have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position, consolidated results of operations or liquidity.

ITEM 4.

Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEM 5.

Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Our common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “ANN.” The number of holders of record of common stock
at February 28, 2014 was 1,899. The following table sets forth the high and low sale prices per share of our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange
for the periods indicated:
Market Price

Low

High

Fiscal Year 2013
Fourth quarter
Third quarter
Second quarter
First quarter
Fiscal Year 2012
Fourth quarter
Third quarter
Second quarter
First quarter

$

$

39.13 $

31.63

37.03

31.40

35.00
32.80

28.66
26.95

36.29 $
39.78
28.85
29.81

29.98
26.36
23.93
22.14

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH
The following graph compares the percentage changes in the cumulative total stockholder return on the Company’s Common Stock for the five-year
period ended February 1, 2014 , with the cumulative total return on the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index (“S&P 500”) and the Dow Jones U.S. Apparel
Retailers Index for the same period. In accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the returns are indexed to a value of $100 at
January 31, 2009 and assume that all dividends, if any, were reinvested. This performance graph shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), or otherwise subject to the liabilities under that Section, and shall not be deemed to be
incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act.
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We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock. Any determination to pay cash dividends is at the discretion of our Board of Directors,
which considers it on a periodic basis. In addition, as a holding company, our ability to pay dividends is dependent upon the receipt of dividends or other
payments from our subsidiaries, including our wholly-owned subsidiary AnnTaylor, Inc. The payment of dividends by AnnTaylor, Inc. to us is subject to
certain restrictions under our Credit Facility. We are also subject to certain restrictions contained in the Credit Facility on the payment of cash dividends on our
common stock. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources.”
The following table sets forth information concerning purchases of our common stock for the periods indicated, which upon repurchase, are classified
as treasury shares available for general corporate purposes:

Total
Number
of Shares
Purchased (1)

Average
Price Paid

Per Share

Total
Number of
Shares
Purchased
as Part
of Publicly
Announced
Program (2)

Approximate
Dollar Value
of Shares
that May Yet
Be Purchased
Under Publicly
Announced
Program
(in thousands)

482

November 3, 2013 to November 30, 2013
December 1, 2013 to January 4, 2014
January 5, 2014 to February 1, 2014

370

—
852

$

35.97
35.66
—

—
—
—
—

$

250,000
250,000
250,000

(1) Represents shares of restricted stock purchased in connection with employee tax withholding obligations under employee equity compensation
plans, which are not purchases under the Company’s publicly announced program.
(2) On August 21, 2013, our Board of Directors approved a new $250 million securities repurchase program (the “Repurchase Program”).
The Repurchase Program will expire when we have repurchased all securities authorized for repurchase thereunder, unless terminated
earlier by our Board of Directors. There were no repurchases made under the Repurchase Program during the fourth quarter of Fiscal
2013. As of February 1, 2014 and March 14, 2014, the date of this Report, $250 million remained available for share repurchases under the
Repurchase Program.
The information called for by this item relating to “Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans” is provided in Item 12.
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ITEM 6.

Selected Financial Data.

The following historical Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated Balance Sheet information has been derived from our audited
consolidated financial statements. The information set forth below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this document. All references to years
are to our fiscal year, which ends on the Saturday nearest January 31 in the following calendar year. All fiscal years for which financial information is set
forth below contain 52 weeks, except for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2013, which includes 53 weeks.
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1, 2014

February 2, 2013

January 28, 2012

January 30, 2010

January 29, 2011

(in thousands, except earnings per share and store count information)

Consolidated Statements of Operations:
Net sales

$

Cost of sales

Gross margin
Selling, general and administrative expenses

Restructuring charges
Asset impairment charges
Operating income/(loss)

2,493,491
1,150,183
1,343,308
1,173,234
—
—
170,074

Interest and investment income/(expense), net

(94)

Other non-operating expense, net (1)

(17)

Income/(loss) before income taxes

$

167,653
65,068
102,585

67,533

Net income/(loss)

$

102,430

$

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

$
$

2.21

$
$

Weighted average shares outstanding

2.19

2.13
2.10

45,490
45,955

Weighted average shares outstanding, assuming dilution

$

(189)

169,963

Income tax provision/(benefit)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

2,375,509
1,073,167
1,302,342
1,135,551
—
—
166,791
1,051

$
$
$

2,212,493
1,004,350
1,208,143
1,062,644
—
—
145,499
(1,052)
—
144,447
57,881
86,566
1.66
1.64

$

48,094

$

(668)

—
119,122

$
$
$

51,200
52,029

47,494

1,980,195
876,201
1,103,994
978,580
5,624
—
119,790

45,725
73,397
1.26
1.24

$
$
$

1,828,523
834,188
994,335
966,603
36,368
15,318
(23,954)
(2,156)
—
(26,110)
(7,902)
(18,208)
(0.32)
(0.32)

56,782
56,782

57,203
58,110

Consolidated Operating Information:

Percentage increase/(decrease) in comparable sales (2)

2.3%

3.3%

6.8%

10.7%

(17.4)%

Number of stores:
Open at beginning of period

984

953

896

907

Opened during the period

66

63

76

24

14

Closed during the period

(25)

(32)

(19)

(35)

(42)

896
5,284
64,367
95,523
8.0x
4.8x

5,348
35,736
104,351
10.5x

Open at the end of the period

Total store square footage at end of period
Capital expenditures (3)
Depreciation and amortization

$
$

Working capital turnover (4)

Inventory turnover (5)

1,025
5,873
145,065
106,588

984
5,685
149,737
97,829

$
$

$
$

953
5,584
124,448
94,187

12.4x

13.2x

9.7x

5.0x

5.0x

4.9x

$
$

935

907

$
$

4.9x

Consolidated Balance Sheet Information:

Working capital

Total assets

Total stockholders’ equity

$

231,472
1,032,960
468,456

$

169,275
942,205
385,110
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$

189,420
887,681
363,877

$

268,005 $
229,521
926,820
902,141
423,445
417,186
(Footnotes on following page)

(Footnotes for preceding page)

(1) Other non-operating expense, net consists of foreign currency transaction gains or losses.
(2) Comparable sales provide a measure of existing store sales performance. A store is included in comparable sales in its thirteenth month of operation.
A store with a square footage change of greater than 15% is treated as a new store for the first year following its reopening. Sales from our Websites

are also included in comparable sales. In a fiscal year with 53 weeks, such as Fiscal 2012, sales in the last week of that fiscal year are excluded
from comparable sales.
(3) Capital expenditures are accounted for on the accrual basis and include net non-cash transactions totaling $2.0 million , $2.5 million, $5.5 million,
$3.2 million and $(2.8) million, in Fiscal 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The non-cash transactions are primarily related to the
purchase of property and equipment on account.
(4) Working capital turnover is determined by dividing net sales by the average of the amount of working capital at the beginning and end of the period.
(5) Inventory turnover is determined by dividing cost of sales by the average of the cost of inventory at the beginning and end of the period.
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ITEM 7.Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
The following discussion and analysis should be read together with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Management Overview

Fiscal 2013 was another strong year for ANN INC. Despite soft traffic and tepid consumer spending across much of the retail industry, particularly
during the back half of the year, we achieved record diluted earnings per share of $2.19 for the year. This performance reflected higher net sales, including
our fourth consecutive year of positive comparable sales performance at both brands, solid gross margin rate performance, continued disciplined management
of expenses and the benefit of additional share repurchase activity. Our focus on our client helped drive this performance, with strong product offerings at both
Ann Taylor and LOFT throughout much of the year and continued investments in stores and technology aimed at providing clients a more engaging and
seamless shopping experience.

At the Ann Taylor brand, total net sales in Fiscal 2013 increased 1.5% compared to last year, with overall comparable sales increasing 1.1%. At Ann
Taylor, which includes Ann Taylor stores and anntaylor.com, comparable sales increased 4.9%, reflecting the strength of our merchandise offerings
throughout much of the year, despite the impact of the challenging macroeconomic environment, which forced us to be more promotional across all channels of
the business. This was especially true at Ann Taylor Factory, where we also experienced softer traffic throughout the year and a 6.6% decrease in comparable
sales.

At the LOFT brand, total net sales in Fiscal 2013 increased 7.2% compared to last year, with overall comparable sales up 3.0% on top of the 4.8%
increase achieved in Fiscal 2012. At LOFT, which includes LOFT stores and LOFT.com, comparable sales increased 4.2% primarily due to favorable
response to LOFT’s merchandise assortments, particularly in the back half of the year. LOFT’s comparable sales momentum improved throughout the year,
despite the consumer challenges and increasingly promotional retail environment in the back half. Performance at LOFT Outlet, however, was negatively
impacted by softer traffic trends at factory outlet centers throughout much of the year, which caused a 3.0% decrease in comparable sales.

Our Fiscal 2013 real estate strategy was primarily focused on expanding our domestic store presence at the LOFT brand, continuing to increase our
international presence in Canada at both Ann Taylor and LOFT and the execution of selective store closures across the fleet. Toward that end, we opened a
total of 66 new stores during Fiscal 2013. At the Ann Taylor brand, we opened seven new Ann Taylor stores, including two stores in Canada, and updated or
right-sized an additional 31 existing stores. As a result of these capital investments, approximately 80 percent of the Ann Taylor store fleet now reflects our
updated modern brand aesthetic. At Ann Taylor Factory, we opened seven new stores during Fiscal 2013. At LOFT, we continued to move forward with the
expansion of our LOFT fleet, opening 38 new LOFT stores, primarily in small- to mid-markets, including five LOFT stores in Canada. In addition, we
opened 14 new LOFT Outlet stores during Fiscal 2013. We also closed a total of 25 underperforming stores during Fiscal 2013, bringing our total store count
at the end of the year to 1,025 stores.
Our strategic priorities for Fiscal 2014 include further evolving our business for continued growth in an increasingly omni-channel retail environment.
Retailing has undergone significant changes over the past few years, driven primarily by the shift in consumer shopping behavior and the rise of omni-channel
offerings that span both store and online channels. The Fall 2012 launch of the first phase of our omni-channel initiative marked the first step in our omnichannel journey. We built on this momentum in Fiscal 2013 with enhancements to our online search engine optimization program and the launch of our client
relationship management platform. In 2014, we plan to begin laying the groundwork for the second phase of our omni-channel initiative, which will further
enhance the seamless client shopping experience by enabling fulfillment of in-store client orders online. We are also realigning our organization to better support
our integrated stores/e-commerce structure and further accelerate our strategic growth agenda and overall financial performance.
We also have plans to further expand our international business in Fiscal 2014, with additional store openings in Canada and the anticipated opening of
the first LOFT store in Mexico later in the year. We view this as another opportunity to continue to grow our client base and the geographic reach of our strong
brands. In addition, building on the success of LOFT Lounge, a product category at LOFT that combines style and comfort and is very much in sync with
how women are dressing today, we are developing a new brand concept under the Lou & Grey name. We believe Lou & Grey is uniquely positioned in an
attractive segment in the women’s retail market and are assessing a range of opportunities to grow this brand, including a shop-in-shop concept and the testing
of free-standing stores.
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Overall, we are committed to expanding the scope of our entire product offering at ANN INC., making us the clear wardrobing destination for women
with style. Ann Taylor is focused on wear-to-work and special occasion, LOFT on relaxed wear-to-work and casual separates, and Lou & Grey on effortless,
casual, comfortable style. Our brands offer great fashion, service, quality and value, along with an engaging client experience across all channels. We believe
our strategic initiatives present significant opportunities to build on the strength of our brands in order to deliver long-term, profitable growth in 2014 and
beyond. In addition, with $202 million in cash and cash equivalents, strong free cash flow and availability under our $250 million share repurchase
program, we will continue to evaluate share repurchase activity as another means of further enhancing shareholder value.
Key Performance Indicators
In evaluating our performance, senior management reviews certain key performance indicators, including:

•

Comparable sales – Comparable sales (“comps”) provide a measure of existing store sales performance. A store is included in comparable sales in its
thirteenth month of operation. A store with a square footage change of greater than 15% is treated as a new store for the first year following its
reopening. Sales from our Websites are also included in comparable sales. In a fiscal year with 53 weeks, such as Fiscal 2012, sales in the last week
of that fiscal year are excluded from comparable sales.

•

Gross margin and merchandise gross margin – Gross margin measures our ability to control the direct costs of merchandise sold during the period.
Merchandise gross margin represents the difference between net merchandise sales and merchandise cost. Merchandise cost includes the cost paid to
our third-party suppliers for merchandise sold during the period and the cost to transport that merchandise from our suppliers to our distribution
center, including customs costs. Gross margin includes merchandise gross margin, as well as the effect of revenue and/or expenses related to: our
sourcing operations; fulfillment and shipment of online and omni-channel sales; depreciation related to merchandise management systems; sample
development costs; and direct costs of our credit card loyalty program. Buying and occupancy costs are excluded from cost of sales and gross
margin.

•

Operating income – Because retailers do not uniformly record supply chain, buying and/or occupancy costs as components of cost of sales or
selling, general and administrative expenses, operating income allows us to benchmark our performance relative to other retailers. Operating income
represents earnings before interest, other income/expense and income taxes and measures our earnings power from ongoing operations.

•

Store productivity – Store productivity, including sales per square foot, average unit retail price (“AUR”), units per transaction (“UPT”), dollars per
transaction (“DPT”), traffic and conversion, is evaluated by management in assessing our operating performance.

•

Inventory turnover – Inventory turnover measures our ability to sell our merchandise and how many times it is replaced over time. This ratio is
important in determining the need for markdowns, planning future inventory levels and assessing client response to our merchandise.

•

Quality of merchandise offerings – To monitor and maintain client acceptance of our merchandise offerings, we monitor sell-through levels,
inventory turnover, gross margin, returns and markdown rates at a class and style level. This analysis helps identify merchandise issues at an early
date and helps us plan future product development and buying.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth data from our Consolidated Statements of Operations expressed as a percentage of net sales. All fiscal years presented
contain 52 weeks, except for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2013, which includes 53 weeks:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1, 2014

February 2,
2013

January 28, 2012

Net sales

100.0 %

100.0 %

100.0 %

Cost of sales
Gross margin
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Operating income
Interest and investment income/(expense), net
Other non-operating expense, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision
Net income

46.1 %
53.9 %
47.1 %
6.8 %
—%
—%
6.8 %
2.7 %

45.2 %
54.8 %
47.8 %

45.4 %
54.6 %

7.0 %
—%
—%

6.6 %

7.0 %

4.1 %

4.3 %

6.5 %
2.6 %
3.9 %

48.0 %
(0.1)%
—%

2.7 %

The following table sets forth selected data from our Consolidated Statements of Operations expressed as a percentage change from the prior period. All
fiscal years presented contain 52 weeks, except for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2013, which includes 53 weeks:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1, 2014 February 2, 2013 January 28, 2012

Net sales

5.0 %

7.4%

Gross margin
Operating income
Net income

3.1 %
2.0 %
(0.2)%

7.8%
14.6%
18.5%

11.7%
9.4%
21.5%
17.9%

Sales and Sales Metrics
The following tables present information on sales and certain sales-related metrics. All fiscal years presented contain 52 weeks, except for the fiscal year
ended February 2, 2013, which includes 53 weeks.
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1, 2014
Sales

Comp %

February 2, 2013
Sales

January 28, 2012

Comp %

Sales

Comp %

($ in thousands)

Sales and Comparable Sales
Ann Taylor brand
Ann Taylor (1)
Ann Taylor Factory
Total Ann Taylor brand
LOFT brand
LOFT (2)
LOFT Outlet
Total LOFT brand

Total Company
(1)
(2)

$ 667,995
291,797
959,792
1,272,854
260,845
1,533,699
$2,493,491

4.9 % $
(6.6)%
1.1 %

644,486
300,738

945,224

1,202,244
228,041
3.0 %
1,430,285
2.3 % $ 2,375,509
4.2 %

(3.0)%

Includes sales at Ann Taylor stores and anntaylor.com.
Includes sales at LOFT stores and LOFT.com.
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1.8 % $ 618,446
(0.5)%
289,406
1.1 %
907,852
5.8 %
(1.5)%

1,114,911
189,730
4.8 %
1,304,641
3.3 % $2,212,493

4.9%
5.7%
5.2%
7.5%
14.2%
8.0%

6.8%

Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,
2014

Sales-Related Metrics
Average Dollars Per Transaction (“DPT”)
Ann Taylor brand
LOFT brand
Average Units Per Transaction (“UPT”)
Ann Taylor brand
LOFT brand

$

74.67
60.54

February 2,
2013

$

77.67
60.38

January 28,
2012

$

2.36
2.55

2.43

2.63

78.90
62.20
2.34

2.58

Average Unit Retail (“AUR”)

$

Ann Taylor brand
LOFT brand

30.73
23.02

$

32.91
23.68

$

33.72

24.11

Store Data
The following table sets forth certain store data:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 2, 2013

February 1, 2014
Stores

Square Feet

January 28, 2012

Square Feet

Stores

Stores

Square Feet

(square feet in thousands)

(1)

Stores and Square Footage
Ann Taylor brand
Ann Taylor
Ann Taylor Factory
Total Ann Taylor brand
LOFT brand
LOFT
LOFT Outlet
Total LOFT brand
Total Company
Number of:
Stores open at beginning of period
New stores
Downsized/expanded stores, net (1)
Closed stores
Stores open at end of period

268

1,329

275

108

732

101

376

2,061

376

1,389
696
2,085

539
110
649
1,025

3,081
731
3,812
5,873

512
96
608
984

2,950
650
3,600
5,685

984
66
—
(25)
1,025

5,685

953
63
—

5,584

344

(24)

(132)

5,873

(32)

984

340

(69)
(170)
5,685

280

1,460

99
379

700

2,160

500
74

2,904
520

574
953

5,584

896
76
—
(19)
953

3,424

5,284
473

(58)
(115)
5,584

During Fiscal 2013 , we downsized 10 Ann Taylor stores, two Ann Taylor Factory stores and five LOFT stores and expanded two LOFT stores.
During Fiscal 2012 , we downsized 18 Ann Taylor stores, four Ann Taylor Factory stores, five LOFT stores and one LOFT Outlet store. During
Fiscal 2011, we downsized 11 Ann Taylor stores and three Ann Taylor Factory stores.
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Comparison of Fiscal Years 2013 and 2012
Total net sales for Fiscal 2013 increased approximately $118.0 million, or 5.0%, as compared with Fiscal 2012 . This was driven, in part, by a 2.3%
increase in total comparable sales, with approximately two-thirds of the increase in total comparable sales attributable to higher sales at our Websites. The
remainder of the increase in total net sales was primarily due to net store growth; increases in traffic and transactions at Ann Taylor and LOFT, reflecting the
continued benefit of our omni-channel initiative; and the benefit of our strategy to offer clients a broader assortment of relevant fashion in-store and online.
Despite continued soft traffic trends, particularly in factory outlet centers throughout the year, and tepid consumer spending during the holiday selling season,
both brands experienced increases in total net sales and comparable sales over the prior-year period, which benefited from approximately $25.4 million in total
net sales due to the effect of the 53rd week.

At the Ann Taylor brand, total net sales increased approximately $14.6 million, or 1.5%, in Fiscal 2013 as compared with Fiscal 2012, with
comparable sales increasing 1.1%. At Ann Taylor, which includes Ann Taylor stores and anntaylor.com, net sales increased 3.6% to $668.0 million , driven
by a 4.9% increase in comparable sales partially offset by the impact of a net reduction in stores. Our strategy to provide an expanded assortment of relevant
fashion across all price points, both in-store and online, as well as the success of our wear-to-work offerings, drove increases in traffic, transactions and
UPT, all of which contributed to this performance. At Ann Taylor Factory, net sales decreased 3.0% to $291.8 million , due to the net effect of a 6.6% decrease
in comparable sales, partially offset by the impact of net store growth during the period. This performance reflected the impact of softer traffic and a highly
promotional environment in factory outlet centers, which caused a decrease in transactions and lower AUR and DPT as compared to Fiscal 2012 .
At the LOFT brand, total net sales increased approximately $103.4 million , or 7.2%, in Fiscal 2013 as compared with Fiscal 2012 , with comparable
sales increasing 3.0%. At LOFT, which includes LOFT stores and LOFT.com, net sales increased 5.9% to $1,272.9 million, driven by a 4.2% increase in
comparable sales and the impact of a net increase in stores over the prior year. LOFT experienced increases in traffic, UPT and DPT and also benefited from
our strategy to expand the brand into small and mid-sized markets. At LOFT Outlet, net sales increased 14.4% to $260.8 million , which was primarily due to
net store growth, partially offset by a 3.0% decrease in comparable sales. LOFT Outlet was similarly impacted by softer traffic at factory outlet centers, which
caused decreases in AUR and DPT as compared to Fiscal 2012 .

Comparison of Fiscal Years 2012 and 2011
Total net sales increased approximately $163.0 million , or 7.4%, in Fiscal 2012 as compared with Fiscal 2011 with total comparable sales increasing
3.3%. Approximately one-quarter of the increase in total comparable sales was attributable to higher net sales at our Websites. Approximately $25.4 million of
the increase in total net sales was due to the effect of the 53rd week in Fiscal 2012. Despite challenges in the back half of the year, due, in part, to the lingering
effects of Superstorm Sandy in the Northeast region, both brands experienced increases in total net sales and comparable sales in Fiscal 2012. Both brands

also benefited from the third-quarter launch of the first phase of our multi-channel initiative, which enabled store order fulfillment of internet sales, and
contributed to higher traffic and conversion. In addition, during Fiscal 2012, we recognized $6.6 million in revenue related to gift card and merchandise credit
breakage, where we determined there was no legal obligation to escheat the value of the cards under unclaimed property laws and the likelihood of redemption
was considered remote. Fiscal 2012 is the first period during which we recognized gift card and merchandise credit “breakage,” and therefore includes the
breakage income related to gift cards sold and merchandise credits issued since inception of these programs.

At the Ann Taylor brand, total net sales increased approximately $37.4 million , or 4.1%, i n Fiscal 2012 as compared with Fiscal 2011, with
comparable sales increasing 1.1%. Sales at our multi-channel Ann Taylor business, which includes Ann Taylor stores and anntaylor.com, benefited from a
merchandise mix that reflected the brand’s updated assortment and pricing strategies. In addition, beginning in late Spring, our merchandise assortments
offered a much higher penetration of color and a broader range of relevant fashion at opening price points, contributing to higher traffic, conversion and UPTs.
At Ann Taylor Factory, we experienced a 3.9% increase in total net sales, due to higher UPTs, an increase in conversion and the addition of three new stores,
partially offset by the effect of a decrease in traffic.
At the LOFT brand, total net sales increased $125.6 million, or 9.6%, in Fiscal 2012 as compared with Fiscal 2011, with comparable sales up 4.8%.
At our multi-channel LOFT business, which includes LOFT stores and LOFT.com, clients responded positively to the brand’s entire merchandise
assortment, however, our full-year results were impacted by a fourth-quarter investment in bright colors that did not resonate with our clients during the
holiday season. While this impacted our fourth quarter top-line results, for the full-year period, we experienced increases in both traffic and conversion, which
contributed to higher full-price sell-through. At LOFT Outlet, we experienced higher conversion and an increase in UPTs, however, inventory levels were
constrained in the back half of Fiscal 2012, which contributed to a comparable sales decrease of 1.5% for the full-year period.
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Our net sales do not show significant seasonal variation. As a result, we have not had significant overhead and other costs generally associated with
large seasonal variations.

Cost of Sales and Gross Margin
Because retailers do not uniformly record supply chain, buying and/or occupancy costs as cost of sales or selling, general and administrative expenses,
our gross margin and selling, general and administrative expenses, both in dollars and as a percentage of net sales, may not be comparable to other retailers.
For additional information regarding costs classified in “Cost of sales” and “Selling, general and administrative expenses,” on our Consolidated Statements of
Operations, refer to Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
The following table presents cost of sales and gross margin in dollars and gross margin as a percentage of net sales:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,
2014

February 2,
2013

January 28,
2012

(dollars in thousands)

$ 1,150,183 $ 1,073,167 $ 1,004,350
$ 1,343,308 $ 1,302,342 $ 1,208,143
53.9%
54.8%
54.6%

Cost of sales
Gross margin
Percentage of net sales

Gross margin as a percentage of net sales was 53.9% in Fiscal 2013 , a decrease from 54.8% in Fiscal 2012 . Our full-year gross margin results were
negatively impacted by a highly competitive retail environment, which caused us to be more promotional than planned at both brands in order to clear through
inventory. As a result, we experienced an overall decrease in merchandise gross margin rate, despite higher merchandise gross-margin rate performance at Ann
Taylor, which was primarily due to higher full-price sell-through. Our year-over-year gross margin rate performance was also negatively impacted by higher
levels of client shipping associated with a full-year of omni-channel sales in Fiscal 2013 as compared to Fiscal 2012, as well as the benefit in the prior-year
period associated with initial recognition of gift card and merchandise credit breakage.
Gross margin as a percentage of net sales was 54.8% in Fiscal 2012 , an increase from 54.6% in Fiscal 2011. Our full-year gross margin results were
positively impacted by favorable client response to our merchandise offerings, which enabled fewer store-wide promotions and more targeted promotional
activity during most of the year. This contributed to higher merchandise gross margin rate performance as compared to Fiscal 2011. In addition, our full-year
gross margin rate performance was positively impacted by the gross margin effect of gift card and merchandise credit breakage. These improvements were
partially offset by a period-over-period increase in client shipping costs during the back half of Fiscal 2012, due, in part, to the effect of our multi-channel
initiative.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
The following table presents selling, general and administrative expenses in dollars and as a percentage of net sales:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,
2014

February 2,
2013

January 28,
2012

(dollars in thousands)

$ 1,173,234 $ 1,135,551 $ 1,062,644
47.1%
47.8%
48.0%

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Percentage of net sales

Selling, general and administrative expenses in Fiscal 2013 increased approximately $37.7 million compared with Fiscal 2012 . This increase was
primarily due to increases in payroll, occupancy and other variable expenses related to store growth and higher net sales, as well as other expenses to support
the expansion of our business. These increases were partially offset by an overall decrease in performance-based compensation expense. As a percentage of net
sales, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 0.7% as compared to Fiscal 2012, reflecting the benefit of increased fixed cost leverage as a result
of higher net sales and lower performance-based compensation expense.
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Selling, general and administrative expenses in Fiscal 2012 increased approximately $72.9 million compared with Fiscal 2011. This increase was
primarily due to higher payroll and occupancy costs associated with our store growth, an overall increase in variable costs related to higher net sales and other
expenses to support the expansion of our business. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in certain performance-based compensation expense. As
a percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 0.2% as compared to Fiscal 2011, primarily due to fixed cost leveraging as a
result of higher net sales and a reduction in certain performance-based compensation expense, partially offset by an increase in expenses supporting the
expansion of our business.
Income Taxes
The following table presents our income tax provision and effective income tax rate:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,

February 2,
2013

2014

January 28,
2012

(dollars in thousands)

$

Income tax provision
Effective income tax rate

67,533 $
39.7%

65,068 $
38.8%

57,881
40.1%

Our effective income tax rate increased to 39.7% in Fiscal 2013 as compared to 38.8% in Fiscal 2012 , primarily due to the benefit in the prior-year
period of tax positions that were considered effectively settled. Our effective income tax rate decreased in Fiscal 2012 as compared with Fiscal 2011, primarily

due to tax positions that were considered effectively settled during Fiscal 2012, partially offset by a change in the mix of earnings in various state taxing
jurisdictions. See Note 8, “Income Taxes” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Our primary sources of liquidity are cash flow from operations, available cash and cash equivalents and availability under our revolving credit facility.
Our primary cash requirements relate to working capital needs, retail store expansion, store renovation and refurbishment, investments in technology and
additional share repurchases.
The following table sets forth certain measures of our liquidity:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,

February 2,
2013

2014

January 28,
2012

(dollars in thousands)

$
$

Cash provided by operating activities
Working capital
Current ratio

215,747 $
231,472 $
1.70:1

258,909 $
169,275 $
1.50:1

207,828
189,420
1.66:1

Operating Activities
Cash provided by operating activities decreased $43.2 million , to $215.7 million , in Fiscal 2013 as compared to $258.9 million in Fiscal 2012 . The
year-over-year decrease is primarily the result of increases in cash used for the purchase of merchandise inventories, payments related to our incentive
compensation plans and the timing of payment of income taxes, accounts payable and other accrued expenses, partially offset by the receipt of an upfront
bonus associated with our credit card program.

Cash provided by operating activities increased $51.1 million to $258.9 million in Fiscal 2012 as compared to Fiscal 2011. This increase was
primarily due to the result of higher net income adjusted for non-cash expenses and changes in merchandise inventories, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, with the latter driven by changes in short-term compensation accruals. These increases were partially offset by changes in prepaid expenses and
other current assets, primarily related to the timing of February rent payments.
Merchandise inventories increased approximately $22.8 million , or 10.5%, in Fiscal 2013 from Fiscal 2012 . This increase reflects inventory to support
our comparable sales and store growth, a change in the merchandise mix at Ann Taylor and the timing of receipts for Spring product in our factory outlet
channel. On a per-square-foot basis, merchandise inventories increased 7% as compared to last year, reflecting increases of 10% at Ann Taylor, 7% at LOFT
and 6% in the factory outlet channel. Inventory turned 5.0 times in both Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 .
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Investing Activities
Cash used for investing activities was $142.6 million in Fiscal 2013 , compared with $149.9 million in Fiscal 2012 . Cash used for investing activities
in Fiscal 2013 was primarily related to capital expenditures associated with our store expansion and refurbishment projects, continued enhancements to our
online capabilities and other investments in technology.
Cash used for investing activities was $149.9 million in Fiscal 2012 , compared with $120.5 million in Fiscal 2011. Cash used for investing activities
in Fiscal 2012 was primarily related to capital expenditures associated with new store openings, store refurbishment projects and investments in technology.
The following table sets forth a breakdown of our accrual-basis capital expenditures:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,
2014

February 2,
2013

January 28,
2012

(in thousands)

New store construction
Store renovation/refurbishment
Information systems
Corporate offices/distribution center
Other
Total

$

70,840 $

$

42,590
26,739
3,974
922
145,065 $

76,631 $
45,524
23,298
3,792
492
149,737 $

59,336
36,505
26,747
1,380
480

124,448

We expect our total capital expenditure requirements in Fiscal 2014 will be approximately $120 million . Of this amount, approximately $40 million will
be spent on new store construction, driven by the planned opening of approximately 50 stores. Approximately $50 million will be spent on 40 planned
downsizes and remodels and other store renovation and refurbishment projects. The new stores, store closures and downsizes are expected to result in a net
increase in total square footage of approximately 65,000 square feet, or approximately 1% as compared to Fiscal 2013 . In addition, approximately $30 million
is planned for continued investments in information systems, technology and further integration of our Websites through additional enhancements to website
functionality. The actual amount of our capital expenditures will depend in part on the number of stores opened, expanded and refurbished. To finance our
capital requirements, we expect to use internally generated funds. See “Business - Stores” for further discussion.

Financing Activities
Cash used for financing activities was $38.0 million in Fiscal 2013 , compared with $92.2 million in Fiscal 2012 . Cash used for financing activities in
Fiscal 2013 was primarily related to the repurchase of our common stock, partially offset by cash inflows related to stock option exercise activity and the
related tax benefits.
Cash used for financing activities was $92.2 million in Fiscal 2012 , compared with $163.8 million in Fiscal 2011. Cash used for financing activities
in Fiscal 2012 was primarily due to the repurchase of 140.8 million of our common stock, partially offset by cash inflows related to an increase in stock
option exercise activity.

Revolving Credit Facility
On December 19, 2012, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, AnnTaylor, Inc., and certain of its subsidiaries, entered into a Fourth Amended and
Restated $250 million senior secured revolving credit facility with Bank of America, N.A. and a syndicate of lenders (the “New Credit Facility”), which
amended the then existing senior secured revolving credit facility due to expire in April 2013 (collectively, the “Credit Facility”). The New Credit Facility,
which expires on December 19, 2017 , includes a $75 million sub-facility solely for loans and letters of credit to be provided to ANN Canada Inc. and an
option to expand the total facility and the aggregate commitments thereunder up to $400 million , subject to the lenders’ agreement to increase their commitment

for the requested amount. The Credit Facility may be used for working capital, letters of credit and other corporate purposes and contains an acceleration
clause which, upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, which includes, but is not limited to, a Material Adverse Effect, as defined in the Credit Facility,
may cause any outstanding borrowings to become immediately due and payable.
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The maximum availability for loans and letters of credit under the New Credit Facility is governed by a quarterly borrowing base, determined by the
application of specified percentages to certain eligible assets, primarily accounts receivable and inventory. Commercial and standby letters of credit
outstanding under the Credit Facility totaled approximately $11.0 million, $14.1 million and $16.7 million as of February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and
January 28, 2012 , respectively, leaving a remaining available balance for loans and letters of credit of $171.4 million , $150.8 million and $146.4 million as
of February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 , respectively. There were no borrowings outstanding under the Credit Facility at February 1,
2014, February 2, 2013 , or as of March 14, 2014 , the date of this Report.

The Credit Facility permits us to pay cash dividends (and permits dividends by AnnTaylor, Inc. to fund such cash dividends) subject to certain
Liquidity requirements (as defined in the Credit Facility) and other conditions as set forth in the Credit Facility. Subject, in some cases, to certain exceptions,
certain of our subsidiaries are also permitted to pay dividends to us to fund certain taxes owed by us; fund ordinary operating expenses not in excess of
$500,000 in any fiscal year; repurchase common stock held by employees not in excess of $100,000 in any fiscal year; and for certain other stated purposes.
See Note 4, “Revolving Credit Facility,” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of the Credit Facility.

Repurchase Program
On August 21, 2013, our Board of Directors approved a new $250 million securities repurchase program (the “Repurchase Program”). The Repurchase
Program will expire when we have repurchased all securities authorized for repurchase thereunder, unless terminated earlier by our Board of Directors.
Purchases of shares of common stock may be made from time to time, subject to market conditions and at prevailing market prices, through open market
purchases or in privately negotiated transactions. Repurchased shares of common stock increase treasury shares available for general corporate purposes.
There were no share repurchases made under the Repurchase Program during Fiscal 2013. As of February 1, 2014 and March 14, 2014 , the date of this
Report, $250 million remained available for share repurchases under the Repurchase Program.
During Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, under our then existing $600 million securities repurchase program, we repurchased 1.5 million , 4.9
million and 7.3 million shares of our common stock, respectively, through open market purchases at a cost of $49 million , $135 million , and $175 million,
respectively. There are no amounts remaining for additional share repurchases under our former securities repurchase program, as we exhausted that share
repurchase authorization during the second quarter of Fiscal 2013.

Credit Card Program
We have a credit card program that offers eligible clients in the United States the choice of a private label or co-branded credit card. All cardholders are
automatically enrolled in our exclusive rewards program, which is designed to recognize and promote client loyalty. We provide the sponsoring bank with
marketing support of the program, and use our sales force to process credit card applications for both the private label and co-branded credit cards. On
December 2, 2013, we entered into an eight-year agreement with the sponsoring bank, which amended and restated the original agreement that began in October
2008. As with the original agreement, we received an upfront signing bonus from the sponsoring bank and also receive ongoing payments for new accounts
activated as well as a share of finance charges collected by the sponsoring bank. These revenue streams are accounted for as a single unit of accounting and
accordingly, are recognized as revenue ratably based on the total projected revenues over the term of the agreement.

Certain judgments and estimates underlie our projected revenues and related expenses under the credit card program, including projected future store
counts, the number of applications processed, our projected sales growth and points breakage, among other things. During Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and
Fiscal 2011, we recognized approximately $18.8 million , $17.8 million and $16.5 million of revenue related to the credit card program, respectively. At
February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 , approximately $3.0 million , $3.0 million and $4.4 million , respectively, of deferred credit card
income is included in “Accrued expenses and other current liabilities” on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Additionally, at February 1, 2014, in connection
with the new agreement, $20.7 million of long-term deferred credit card income is included in “Other liabilities” on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Partially
offsetting the income from the credit card program are costs, net of points breakage, related to the client loyalty program. These costs are included in either
“Cost of sales” or in “Net sales” as a sales discount, as appropriate. The cost of sales impact, net of points breakage, was approximately $5.2 million , $5.7
million and $3.8 million and the sales discount impact was approximately $6.8 million, $6.8 million and $5.5 million in Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and
Fiscal 2011, respectively.
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Pension Obligations
Our funding obligations and liability under the terms of our non-contributory defined benefit pension plan (the “Pension Plan”), which was frozen in
Fiscal 2007, are determined using certain actuarial assumptions, including a discount rate and an expected long-term rate of return on Pension Plan assets. The
discount rate enables us to state expected future cash payments for pension benefits as a present value on the measurement date. A lower discount rate increases
the present value of the benefit obligations and increases pension expense. The discount rate selected was based on a yield curve which uses expected cash
flows from the Pension Plan and then discounts those cash flows with the bond rate for that period. This resulted in a discount rate of 4.65%. A one percent
decrease in the assumed discount rate would increase total net periodic pension expense for Fiscal 2014 by $0.8 million and would increase the liability for
pension benefits at February 1, 2014 by $7.2 million. A one percent increase in the assumed discount rate would decrease total net periodic pension expense for
Fiscal 2014 by $0.1 million and would decrease the liability for pension benefits at February 1, 2014 by $5.4 million.

Pension Plan assets as of February 1, 2014 were allocated 35% in equities, and 65% in bond-related funds. For the purposes of developing long-term
rates of return, it was assumed that the short-term investments were reallocated to equities and bond-related funds, yielding assumed long-term rates of return
of 7.0% and 5.0%, respectively. To develop the expected long-term rate of return on Pension Plan assets, we considered the historical returns and the future
expectations for returns for each asset class, as well as the target asset allocation of the pension portfolio. A lower expected rate of return on Pension Plan assets
would increase pension expense. Our expected long-term rate of return on Pension Plan assets was 5.10% for each of Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 . A one
percent change in the long-term rate of return assumption would impact Fiscal 2014 pension expense by approximately $0.3 million.

Pension expense in Fiscal 2013 was $0.2 million lower than Fiscal 2012, excluding settlement charges, due to the large amount of lump sum
distributions made in Fiscal 2012. Pension costs, excluding settlement charges, in Fiscal 2012 were $1.0 million higher than Fiscal 2011 due to a lower
discount rate and a lower expected rate of return. Pension expense for Fiscal 2014 , excluding any potential settlement charges, is projected to be approximately
$0.1 million, or $0.7 million lower than pension expense in Fiscal 2013 , as unrecognized net loss is not expected to exceed 10% of the projected benefit
obligation or assets. Our Pension Plan is invested in readily-liquid investments, primarily equity and debt securities. Although we were not required to make a
contribution to the Pension Plan in Fiscal 2013 or Fiscal 2012 , any deterioration in the financial markets or changes in discount rates may require us to make
a contribution to our Pension Plan in Fiscal 2014 .
In Fiscal 2012, we initiated a communication to certain eligible Pension Plan participants with vested benefits to elect a lump-sum distribution. As a
result of this effort, we made $8.7 million in lump-sum distribution payments, which resulted in a $1.5 million pension settlement charge in the fourth
quarter of Fiscal 2012. In addition, since the total amount of lump sum pension distribution payments made to Pension Plan participants in the normal course
of business exceeded the interest component of pension expense during Fiscal 2012, we recognized additional non-cash settlement charges of $0.3 million
during that period. All such Pension Plan settlement charges were included in “Selling, general and administrative expenses” in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations. There were no such settlement charges in Fiscal 2013 or Fiscal 2011.

Other
We are self-insured for expenses related to our employee point of service medical plan, our workers’ compensation plan, general liability plan and for
short-term and long-term disability, up to certain thresholds. Claims filed, as well as claims incurred but not reported, are accrued based on management’s
estimates, using information received from plan administrators, third-party actuaries, historical analysis and other relevant data. We believe we have taken
reasonable steps to ensure that we are adequately accrued for incurred costs related to these programs at February 1, 2014 .

We have significant amounts of cash and cash equivalents on deposit at FDIC-insured financial institutions that are currently in excess of federally
insured limits, therefore, we cannot be assured that we will not experience losses with respect to those deposits. We continually evaluate our deposit investment
options in accordance with our corporate investment policy and certain restrictions on permitted investments in our Credit Facility.

As of February 1, 2014 , we had $ 2.1 million invested in foreign bank accounts, of which the majority was held in Canadian dollars. As of
February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 , we had $3.0 million and $0.5 million , respectively, invested in foreign bank accounts. As we continue to expand
outside of the United States, we expect to continue to generate cash from non-U.S. operations. We expect to manage our global cash requirements, considering
available funds generated by our foreign subsidiaries and the cost effectiveness with which those funds can be accessed. Our intent is to indefinitely reinvest
all of these funds outside of the United States, however, we will continually review our domestic and foreign cash profile, expected future cash generation and
investment opportunities and reassess whether there is a demonstrated need to repatriate funds held internationally to support our U.S. operations.
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On March 14, 2014, we announced an organizational restructuring to support the further integration of our brick-and-mortar and online channels,
accelerate our strategic growth agenda and enhance our ongoing financial performance. As a result of the restructuring, we have downsized our corporate
workforce, eliminating approximately 100 positions, including one of our named executive officers. The total pre-tax cash charge associated with this reduction
in force is expected to be approximately $15 million, substantially all of which is expected to be incurred during the first quarter of Fiscal 2014. The
restructuring is expected to result in pre-tax operating savings of approximately $15 million in Fiscal 2014 and approximately $25 million annually thereafter.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off balance sheet arrangements as defined by Item 303 (a) (4) of Regulation S-K.

Contractual Obligations
We have various contractual obligations, some of which are recorded as liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets if the related goods or services
were received prior to February 1, 2014 . Other items, such as leases, purchase commitments and other contractual obligations represent future liabilities and
may not be recognized as liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
The following table sets forth our significant contractual obligations as of February 1, 2014 :
Payments Due by Fiscal Year
Total

2014

2015-2016

2019
And After

2017-2018

(in thousands)

Long-term debt (1)
Capital leases (2)
Operating leases (3)
Purchase obligations:
Store construction (4)
Merchandise (5)
Information services (6)
Other (7)
Total

$

$

5,208 $
4,538
1,318,305

1,825 $
1,536
215,702

3,035 $
2,626
377,810

$

376
296,481

—
—
428,312

4,678
281,609
35,879
33,885
1,684,102 $

4,678
281,609
19,057
32,225
556,632 $

—
—
16,822
1,484
401,777 $

—
—
—
176
297,381 $

—
—
—
—
428,312

348

(1) Represents finance arrangements relating to support and maintenance associated with certain computer equipment on our Consolidated
Balance Sheet as of February 1, 2014 .
(2) Represents capital leases with four-year terms relating to certain computer equipment and licenses recorded on our Consolidated Balance
Sheet as of February 1, 2014 .
(3) Represents future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases in effect as of February 1, 2014. The minimum lease
payments above also do not include common area maintenance ( “CAM”) charges or real estate taxes, which are required contractual
obligations under our store and office operating leases but are generally not fixed and can fluctuate from year to year. Total CAM charges
and real estate taxes for Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 were $84.4 million , $78.8 million and $70.4 million , respectively.
(4) Represents purchase commitments for Fiscal 2014 store construction not recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of February 1,
2014.
(5) Represents open purchase orders with vendors for merchandise not yet received or recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
February 1, 2014 .
(6) Represents outsourcing of certain back-office functions, consulting, maintenance and license agreements for services to be provided and/or
software not yet received or recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of February 1, 2014 .
(7) Represents contractual commitments or open purchase orders for non-merchandise goods or services not received or recorded on our
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of February 1, 2014 .
There were no borrowings outstanding under the Credit Facility as of February 1, 2014 . The Credit Facility contains a provision for commitment fees
related to the unused revolving loan commitment and outstanding letters of credit, which are not included in the above table because these charges are not fixed
and can fluctuate from year to year due to various circumstances. Total commitment fees were $0.7 million in Fiscal 2013 , and $0.9 million in each of Fiscal
2012 and Fiscal 2011.
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The preceding table also excludes approximately $5.4 million of tax reserves accounted for under ASC 740-10, Income Taxes, as we are unable to
reasonably estimate the ultimate amount or timing of any settlement. See Note 8, “Income Taxes,” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
further discussion. In addition, as discussed in Note 9, “Retirement Plans,” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, we have a long-term
liability for our Pension Plan. Minimum pension funding requirements are not included in the table above as such amounts are not readily determinable.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There were no new accounting pronouncements that we expect to have a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations in future
periods.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is based upon our Consolidated Financial Statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our significant accounting policies are more
fully described in Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The preparation of these

Consolidated Financial Statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Based on the above, we have determined that our most critical accounting policies are those related to revenue recognition, merchandise inventory
valuation, asset impairment, income taxes and stock and incentive-based compensation. These policies are also discussed in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements and in relevant sections of this discussion and analysis.
Revenue Recognition
We record revenue as merchandise is sold to clients. Sales from our Websites are recorded as merchandise is shipped to clients based on the date clients
are expected to receive the merchandise. A reserve for estimated returns is established when sales are recorded to account for the financial impact of potential
client merchandise returns. We estimate future client merchandise returns based upon an analysis of actual historical return patterns and current sales and
gross margin rate performance. Based on this analysis, reductions in sales and gross margin are recorded for the estimated value of future client merchandise
returns of previously sold merchandise.

Our gift cards and merchandise credits do not have expiration dates and we honor all gift cards and merchandise credits presented by clients, regardless
of the length of time that passes from issuance to redemption. We record a liability for unredeemed gift cards and merchandise credits at the time gift cards are
sold or merchandise credits are issued. We recognize revenue and relieve the corresponding gift card and/or merchandise credit liability when the cards are
redeemed by clients.

In cases where we have determined that there is a legal obligation to remit the value of unredeemed gift cards and merchandise credits to any state, the
value of these cards is escheated to the appropriate state in accordance with unclaimed property laws. In cases where we have determined that, under applicable
state unclaimed property laws, there is no legal obligation to escheat these amounts to such states and the likelihood of redemption is considered remote, we
recognize a portion of the unredeemed value of gift cards and merchandise credits. Such gift card and merchandise credit “breakage” is estimated based upon
an analysis of actual historical redemption patterns.

We have a credit card program that offers eligible clients in the United States the choice of a private label or co-branded credit card and provides
cardholders membership in an exclusive client loyalty rewards program. We provide the sponsoring bank with marketing support of the program, and use our
sales force to process credit card applications for both the private label and co-branded credit cards. In connection with this arrangement, we received an
upfront signing bonus from the sponsoring bank and also receive ongoing payments for new accounts activated as well as a share of finance charges collected
by the sponsoring bank. These revenue streams are accounted for as a single unit of accounting and accordingly, are recognized as revenue ratably based on
the total projected revenues over the term of the agreement. Certain judgments and estimates underlie the projected revenues and related expenses under the credit
card program, including projected future store counts, the number of applications processed, projected sales growth and points breakage, among other things.
31

Merchandise Inventory Valuation
Merchandise inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or market, at the individual item level. Market is determined based on the estimated net
realizable value, which is generally the merchandise selling price. Merchandise inventory levels are monitored to identify slow-moving items and broken
assortments (items no longer in stock in a sufficient range of sizes) and markdowns are used to clear such merchandise. A reserve is established to account for
situations where the current selling price or future estimated selling price is less than cost. Physical inventory counts are performed annually in January and
estimates are made for any shortage between the date of the physical inventory count and the balance sheet date.

Asset Impairment
Long-lived assets are reviewed periodically for impairment or when events or changes in circumstances indicate that full recoverability of net asset
balances through future cash flows is in question. Management estimates future pre-tax cash flows at a store level (undiscounted and without interest charges)
based on historical experience, knowledge and market data. Estimates of future cash flows require that we make assumptions and apply judgment, including
forecasting future sales and expenses and estimating useful lives of the assets. These estimates can be affected by factors such as future store results, real
estate demand, and economic conditions that can be difficult to predict, as well as other factors such as those outlined in “Risk Factors.” If the expected future
cash flows related to the long-lived assets are less than the assets’ carrying value, an impairment loss would be recognized for the difference between estimated
fair value and carrying value.

Income Taxes
We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under the asset and liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
based on the differences between the financial statement carrying value of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates and laws expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates
on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Inherent in the measurement of these deferred
balances are certain judgments and interpretations of existing tax law and other published guidance as applied to our operations. In determining the need for a
valuation allowance on deferred tax assets, we are required to make assumptions and to apply judgment, including forecasting future earnings, taxable
income, and the mix of earnings in the jurisdictions in which we operate. Our effective tax rate considers our judgment of expected tax liabilities in the various
jurisdictions within which we are subject to tax.
The tax effects of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns are recognized only if they are “more likely-than-not” to be
sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits as of the reporting date. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements
from such positions are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. We
recognize estimated accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense.

We are currently under examination by certain state and local taxing jurisdictions. Further, at any given time, multiple tax years may be subject to
examination by various taxing authorities. The recorded amounts of income tax are subject to adjustment upon examination, changes in interpretation and
changes in judgment utilized in determining estimates. While no adjustments to recorded amounts are anticipated, a 1% variance in our effective tax rate would
affect net income after taxes by approximately $1.7 million in Fiscal 2013 .
Stock and Incentive-based Compensation
The calculation of stock-based compensation expense requires the input of subjective assumptions, including the expected term of the stock-based
awards, stock price volatility and pre-vesting forfeitures. We estimate the expected life of shares granted in connection with stock-based awards using
historical exercise patterns, which we believe are representative of future behavior. We estimate the volatility of our common stock at the date of grant based on

an average of our historical volatility and the implied volatility of publicly traded options on our common stock, if the latter is available. We estimate
forfeitures based on our historical experience of stock-based awards granted, exercised and cancelled, as well as future expected behavior.

Similarly, the calculation of long-term performance compensation expense related to our Restricted Cash Program (“RCP”) requires the input of
subjective assumptions, including the expected forfeiture of earned and banked awards and forecasts of our future income growth. We estimate forfeitures
based on historical RCP forfeiture patterns, as well as current and future trends of expected behavior. We estimate future income growth based on past
performance, future business trends and new business initiatives.
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The assumptions used to calculate the fair value of stock-based awards and long-term performance compensation expense represent our best estimates,
but these estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment. As a result, if factors change and we were to use different
assumptions, the expense recorded could be materially different. For stock-based awards, if we were to adjust our forfeiture rate estimates by 5%, the impact
to stock-based compensation cost would be approximately $0.5 million. Similarly, if we were to adjust RCP forfeiture rate estimates by 15%, the impact to
long-term incentive compensation expense would be approximately $3.7 million. Finally, if we were to adjust the interest rate factors applied to amounts
banked under the RCP by 15%, the impact to long-term incentive compensation expense would be approximately $2.1 million. See Note 7, “Equity and
Incentive Compensation Plans,” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

ITEM 7A.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We have significant amounts of cash and cash equivalents on deposit at FDIC-insured financial institutions that are currently in excess of federally
insured limits, therefore, we cannot be assured that we will not experience losses with respect to those deposits. We continually evaluate our deposit investment
options in accordance with our corporate investment policy and certain restrictions on permitted investments in our Credit Facility.
We are exposed to limited market risk, primarily related to foreign currency exchange. We have exchange rate exposure primarily with respect to certain

revenues and costs denominated in the Canadian dollar. As of February 1, 2014 , our monetary assets and liabilities that are subject to this exposure are
immaterial, therefore, the potential immediate loss to us that would result from a hypothetical 10% change in foreign currency exchange rates would not be
expected to have a material impact on our earnings or cash flows.

AnnTaylor Inc.’s Credit Facility allows for investments in financial instruments with original maturity dates of up to 360 days. As of February 1,
2014, we did not hold any investments that did not qualify as cash and cash equivalents.

ITEM 8.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The following Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the years ended February 1, 2014 (52 weeks), February 2, 2013 (53 weeks) and
January 28, 2012 (52 weeks) are included as part of this Report (See Item 15):

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Fiscal Years Ended February 1, 2014 (52 weeks), February 2, 2013 (53 weeks) and January 28, 2012
(52 weeks).

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Fiscal Years Ended February 1, 2014 (52 weeks), February 2, 2013 (53 weeks) and
January 28, 2012 (52 weeks).
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 .

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Fiscal Years Ended February 1, 2014 (52 weeks), February 2, 2013 (53 weeks) and
January 28, 2012 (52 weeks).
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Fiscal Years Ended February 1, 2014 (52 weeks), February 2, 2013 (53 weeks) and January 28, 2012
(52 weeks).
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 9.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.
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ITEM 9A.

Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company conducted an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Report. Based on such evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this Report.
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of ANN INC. is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act.
Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of February 1, 2014 based on the framework and
criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on this assessment, management concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of February 1,
2014.

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the Company’s fourth fiscal quarter that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

The Company’s Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, issued a report on the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting, which is included in the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, on page 40.

ITEM 9B.

Other Information.

None.
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PART III

ITEM 10.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Sections entitled “Election of Class I Directors,” “Executive Officers,”
“Corporate Governance,” “Stockholder Proposals for the 2015 Annual Meeting” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the
Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The Company has Business Conduct Guidelines that apply to all its associates, including its chief executive officer, chief financial officer, principal
accounting officer and controller, as well as members of the Company’s Board of Directors. The Business Conduct Guideli nes are available on the
Company’s website at http://investor.anninc.com. Any updates or amendments to the Business Conduct Guidelines, as well as any waiver from the Business
Conduct Guidelines granted to an executive officer (including the Company’s chief executive officer, chief financial officer, principal accounting officer and
controller), will also be posted on the website.

ITEM 11.

Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Sections entitled “Executive Compensation,” “Director Compensation,”
“Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Compensation Committee Report” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2014
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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ITEM 12.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this item is presented below and incorporated herein by reference to the Section entitled “Beneficial Ownership of Common
Stock” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The following table sets forth information with respect to shares of the Company’s common stock that may be issued under the Company’s existing
equity compensation plans, as of February 1, 2014 :
(a)

Number of Securities
to be Issued Upon
Exercise of Outstanding
Options, Warrants and Rights

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders (1)
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders (3)
Total

(c)

(b)

Number of Securities
Remaining Available
for Future Issuance Under Equity

Weighted Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights

Compensation Plans
(Excluding Securities
Reflected in Column (a))

1,971,617

$

27.27

4,425,029

228,102
2,199,719

$

20.82
26.60

—
4,425,029

(2)

(1) Consists of the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan and the Associate Discount Stock Purchase Plan (“ADSPP”).
(2) Includes 1,352,527 shares of Common Stock available for issuance under the ADSPP.
(3) Relates to the 2002 Stock Option and Restricted Stock and Unit Award Plan.
See Note 7, “Equity and Incentive Compensation Plans” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of the material features of
these plans.

ITEM 13.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Sections entitled “Related Person Transactions,” “Related Person
Transactions Policy and Procedures” and “Corporate Governance” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 14.

Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Section entitled “Ratification of the Appointment of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV

ITEM 15.

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) List of documents filed as part of this Annual Report:

1.

The following Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are filed as part of this Annual Report:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm;

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Fiscal Years Ended February 1, 2014 (52 weeks), February 2, 2013 (53 weeks) and
January 28, 2012 (52 weeks);
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Fiscal Years Ended February 1, 2014 (52 weeks), February 2, 2013 (53
weeks) and January 28, 2012 (52 weeks);

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 ;

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Fiscal Years Ended February 1, 2014 (52 weeks), February 2, 2013 (53
weeks) and January 28, 2012 (52 weeks);
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Fiscal Years Ended February 1, 2014 (52 weeks), February 2, 2013 (53 weeks) and
January 28, 2012 (52 weeks); and
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

2.

Schedules other than the above have been omitted because they are not applicable.

3.

The exhibits filed as a part of this Annual Report are listed in the Exhibit Index.

(b) The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index attached hereto are filed as part of this Annual Report and incorporated herein by reference.
(c) Not applicable.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
ANN INC.
New York, NY

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of ANN INC. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of February 1, 2014 and
February 2, 2013 , and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three
fiscal years in the period ended February 1, 2014 . We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of February 1, 2014 , based
on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of

controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of ANN INC. and its
subsidiaries as of February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 , and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
February 1, 2014 , in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 1, 2014 , based on the criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
New York, New York
March 14, 2014
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ANN INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For Fiscal Years Ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,

January 28,
2012

February 2,
2013

2014

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

$

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross margin

Interest and investment income/(expense), net
Other non-operating expense, net
Income before income taxes

Income tax provision

Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share

$

1,343,308
1,173,234
170,074
(94)
(17)
169,963
67,533

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Operating income

Net income

2,493,491
1,150,183

$

102,430

$

$

2.21

$

45,490

Weighted average shares outstanding

$

Diluted earnings per share

2.19
45,955

Weighted average shares outstanding, assuming dilution

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2,375,509 $
1,073,167
1,302,342
1,135,551
166,791
1,051
(189)
167,653
65,068
102,585 $
2.13

$

2.10

48,094

144,447

57,881
86,566
1.66
51,200

47,494

$

2,212,493
1,004,350
1,208,143
1,062,644
145,499
(1,052)
—

$

1.64
52,029

ANN INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For Fiscal Years Ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,

January 28,
2012

February 2,
2013

2014

(in thousands)

$

Net income

Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Net change in employee benefit plans:
Pension settlement charge
Net actuarial gain/(loss)
Amortization of net actuarial loss

102,430

$

(1,309)

600

1,824
1,623
$

104,053

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$

103,406

86,566

—

1,760
(1,153)
726
1,352
531
821

3,447

Comprehensive income

$

19

—
4,156

Other comprehensive income/(loss), before tax
Income tax expense/(benefit) on other comprehensive income items
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax

102,585

$

—
(4,932)
62
(4,870)
(1,930)
(2,940)
83,626

ANN INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013
February 1,

February 2,
2013

2014

(in thousands, except share amounts)

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Merchandise inventories
Refundable income taxes

$

Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes
Other assets
Total assets

$

201,707
22,448
239,667
7,252
28,854
61,287
561,215
443,086
6,599
22,060
1,032,960

$

101,276
24,546
20,339

$

167,011
17,856
216,848
9,201
30,397
64,716
506,029
409,703

$

7,841
18,632
942,205

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and bonus
Current portion of long-term performance compensation
Accrued tenancy
Gift certificates and merchandise credits redeemable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

$

38,331

48,150
97,101
329,743
164,703
36
15,456
54,566

Deferred lease costs
Deferred income taxes
Long-term performance compensation, less current portion
Other liabilities

105,691
23,969
34,233

38,647
47,268
86,946
336,754
162,620
228
26,368
31,125

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, $.0068 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 82,563,516 shares issued
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Treasury stock, 36,344,643 and 35,958,318 shares, respectively, at cost
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

$

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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561
751,765
779,272
(2,874)
(1,060,268)
468,456
1,032,960 $

561
768,215
676,842
(4,497)
(1,056,011)
385,110
942,205

ANN INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For Fiscal Years Ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012

Common Stock

Shares

Amount

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Other
Retained
Earnings

Comprehensive
Loss

Treasury Stock
Shares

Amount

Total

(in thousands)

Balance at January 29, 2011
Net income

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Exercise of stock options, related tax benefit
and tax effect of expirations of $4,454

82,555
$
—
— —

561

9

—
— —

$ 772,574
$ 487,691
—
86,566
— —
—

$

(2,378)
—
(2,940)

27,206

—
—

Stock-based compensation

—

—
—

(10,675)
20,710

—
—

—
—

Issuance of restricted stock and vesting of
restricted units, net of forfeitures and
related tax benefits of $3,001
Repurchase of common and restricted stock

—
—

—
—

(5,896)
—

—
—

—
—

7,490

—

(55)
776,658
—
—

—
574,257
102,585
—

—
(5,318)
—
821

(804)

—

$

(835,003)
—
—

18,850
—

$ 423,445
86,566
(2,940)
8,175
20,710

11,986
(180,298)

6,090
(180,298)

33,285
—
—

2,184
(982,281)
—
—

2,129
363,877
102,585
821

54,190
—

36,749
16,998

(511)

Issuance of common stock pursuant to
Associate Discount Stock Purchase Plan
and related tax benefit of disqualifying
dispositions of $66

Balance at January 28, 2012
Net income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Exercise of stock options, related tax benefits
and tax effect of expirations of $1,986

—
82,564
—
—

561

—
—

(96)

—
—

—
—

(17,441)

Stock-based compensation

16,998

—
—

—
—

(1,925)
—

Issuance of restricted stock and vesting of
restricted units, net of forfeitures and
related tax benefits of $2,859
Repurchase of common and restricted stock

—
—

—
—

(7,465)
—

—
—

—
—

5,113

(140,752)

(140,752)

—
—
—

(535)
768,215
—
—

—
676,842
102,430
—

(87)
35,958
—
—

2,507
(1,056,011)
—
—

1,972
385,110
102,430
1,623

(8,717)
16,260

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

1,655

—
(2,874)

36,344

(428)

10,325

2,860

Issuance of common stock pursuant to
Associate Discount Stock Purchase Plan
and related tax benefit of disqualifying
dispositions of $35

Balance at February 2, 2013
Net income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

—
82,564
—
—

561

Exercise of stock options, related tax benefits
and tax effect of expirations of $1,115
Stock-based compensation

—

—
—

Issuance of restricted stock and vesting of
restricted units, net of forfeitures and
related tax benefits of $1,137
Repurchase of common and restricted stock

—
—

—
—

(22,996)

—

—
(4,497)

—
1,623

(572)

22,473

—

—

(621)

24,133
(53,884)

13,756
16,260

1,137
(53,884)

Issuance of common stock pursuant to
Associate Discount Stock Purchase Plan
and related tax benefit of disqualifying
dispositions of $23

Balance at February 1, 2014

—
82,564

—
$

561

(997)

$ 751,765

—
$ 779,272

$

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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(76)

3,021
$ (1,060,268 )

2,024
$ 468,456

ANN INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For Fiscal Years Ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,

January 28,
2012

February 2,
2013

2014

(in thousands)

Operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Deferred income taxes
Depreciation and amortization
Recognition of gift card and merchandise credit breakage
Loss on disposal and write-down of property and equipment
Stock-based compensation
Non-cash interest and other non-cash items
Tax benefit from exercise/vesting of stock awards
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Merchandise inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Refundable income taxes
Other non-current assets
Other non-current liabilities
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

102,430

$

(2,870)
106,588
(2,055)
4,228
16,260

102,585

$

30,272
97,829
(6,602)

7,343

94,187
—
2,287
20,710
287
7,522

3,040

16,998
(341)

453

2,275

7,871

(4,647)
(23,107)

(3,401)

86,566

(9,624)
2,764
(220)
10,783
5,631
258,909

(2,060)
(19,822)
7,063
362
1,897
26,135
(24,649)
207,828

813
(142,600)

(2,246)
269
(147,286)
(649)
(149,912)

(1,379)
91
(118,918)
(250)
(120,456)

1,999
12,641
3,027
(53,884)
4,317
(2,246)
—
(3,839)
(37,985)
(466)
34,696
167,011
201,707 $

1,938
34,762
9,229
(140,752)
—
(1,460)
(1,341)
5,449
(92,175)
(19)
16,803
150,208
167,011 $

2,063
8,499
7,627
(180,298)
—
(1,511)
—
(188)
(163,808)
—
(76,436)
226,644
150,208

1,207

1,350
37,491

1,324

5,422
1,949
431

30,136
(21,746)
215,747

Investing activities:
(3,484)

Purchases of marketable securities
Sales of marketable securities
Purchases of property and equipment
Other, net
Net cash used for investing activities

726
(140,655)

Financing activities:

Proceeds from the issuance of common stock pursuant to Associate Discount Stock
Purchase Plan
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
Repurchases of common and restricted stock
Proceeds from fixed asset financing
Repayments of fixed asset financing and capital lease obligations
Payments of deferred financing costs
Change in trade payable program obligation, net
Net cash used for financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest
Cash paid during the year for income taxes

$
$

1,219
50,169

$
$

40,454

$
$

$

2,444

$

—

$

—

$

22,360

$

20,394

$

17,998

Property and equipment acquired through capital leases

Accrual for purchases of property and equipment

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ANN INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

ANN INC. (the “Company”) is a leading national specialty retailer of women’s apparel, shoes and accessories sold primarily under the “Ann Taylor”
and “LOFT” brands. Its principal markets consist of the United States and Canada. The Company sells its products through traditional retail stores and on
the Internet at www.anntaylor.com and www.LOFT.com (together, the “Websites”) or by phone at 1-800-DIAL-ANN and 1-888-LOFT-444.

Basis of Presentation
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, including its wholly-owned subsidiary, AnnTaylor,
Inc. The Company has no material assets other than the common stock of AnnTaylor, Inc. and conducts no business other than the management of
AnnTaylor, Inc. All intercompany accounts have been eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Year
The Company follows the standard fiscal year of the retail industry, which is a 52- or 53-week period ending on the Saturday closest to January 31. All
fiscal years presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements include 52 weeks, except the fiscal year ended February 2, 2013, which includes 53 weeks.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to use estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the

date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The significant estimates and
assumptions used by management affect: revenue related to the Company’s credit card and gift card and merchandise credit programs; expense associated
with stock-based compensation; the reserve for sales returns; the valuation of inventories; the expense associated with short- and long-term performance-based
compensation; the carrying value of long-lived assets and the valuation of deferred income taxes. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Revenue Recognition
The Company records revenue as merchandise is sold to clients. Sales from the Company’s Websites are recorded as merchandise is shipped to clients
based on the date clients are expected to receive the merchandise. Amounts related to shipping and handling billed to clients in a sales transaction are classified
as revenue and the costs related to shipping product to clients (billed and accrued) are classified as Cost of sales. A reserve for estimated returns is established
when sales are recorded based upon an analysis of actual historical returns and current sales and gross margin rate performance. The Company excludes sales
taxes collected from clients from “Net sales” in its Consolidated Statements of Operations.
The following table sets forth certain product-level sales information for the past three fiscal years:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 2, 2013

February 1, 2014
Sales

% of Sales

Sales

January 28, 2012

% of Sales

Sales

% of Sales

($ in thousands)

Apparel
Accessories
Shoes
Other
Total

$2,244,618
164,897
44,536
39,440

$2,493,491

90% $ 2,146,173
7%
157,852
2%
44,331
1%
27,153
100% $ 2,375,509

90% $ 2,000,875
7%
153,088
2%
39,894
1%
18,636
100% $2,212,493

90%
7%
2%
1%
100%

Gift cards and merchandise credits issued by the Company do not have expiration dates and the Company honors all gift cards and merchandise credits
presented by clients, regardless of the length of time that passes from issuance to redemption. The Company records a liability for unredeemed gift cards and
merchandise credits at the time gift cards are sold or merchandise credits are issued. The Company recognizes revenue and relieves the corresponding gift card
and/or merchandise credit liability when the cards are redeemed by clients.
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ANN INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue Recognition (continued)
In cases where the Company has determined that it has a legal obligation to remit the value of unredeemed gift cards and merchandise credits to any
state, the value of these cards is escheated to the appropriate state in accordance with that state’s unclaimed property laws. In certain jurisdictions, the
Company is permitted to retain a portion of the escheated value of unredeemed gift cards and merchandise credits, which is immaterial and is recorded in “Net
sales” in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The Company recognized $2.1 million and $6.6 million in revenue during Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012, respectively, for a portion of the unredeemed
value of gift cards and merchandise credits where the Company has determined that, under applicable state unclaimed property laws, there is no legal
obligation to escheat these amounts to such states and the likelihood of redemption is considered remote. Fiscal 2012 was the first period during which the
Company recognized gift card and merchandise credit “breakage,” and therefore included the breakage income related to gift cards sold and merchandise
credits issued since inception of these programs. Such gift card and merchandise credit “breakage” is estimated based upon an analysis of actual historical

redemption patterns and is included in Net sales.

The Company has a credit card program that offers eligible clients in the United States the choice of a private label or co-branded credit card. All
cardholders are automatically enrolled in the exclusive rewards program, which is designed to recognize and promote client loyalty. The Company provides the
sponsoring bank with marketing support of the program, and uses our sales force to process credit card applications for both the private label and co-branded
credit cards. On December 2, 2013, the Company entered into an eight-year agreement with the sponsoring bank, which amended and restated the original
agreement that began in October 2008. As with the original agreement, the Company received an upfront signing bonus from the sponsoring bank and also
receives ongoing payments for new accounts activated as well as a share of finance charges collected by the sponsoring bank. These revenue streams are
accounted for as a single unit of accounting and accordingly, are recognized as revenue ratably based on the total projected revenues over the term of the
agreement.

Certain judgments and estimates underlie the Company’s projected revenues and related expenses under the credit card program, including projected
future store counts, the number of applications processed, the Company’s projected sales growth and points breakage, among other things. During Fiscal
2013, Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, the Company recognized approximately $18.8 million , $17.8 million , and $16.5 million of revenue related to the credit
card program, respectively. Partially offsetting this credit card program revenue are costs, net of points breakage, related to the client loyalty program. These
costs are included in either “Cost of sales” or in “Net sales” as a sales discount, as appropriate. The cost of sales impact, net of points breakage, was
approximately $5.2 million , $5.7 million and $3.8 million and the sales discount impact was approximately $6.8 million , $6.8 million and $5.5 million in
Fiscal 2013, Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, respectively.
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ANN INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cost of Sales and Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
The following table illustrates the primary costs classified in each major expense category:

Cost of Sales

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Cost of merchandise sold;

Payroll, bonus and benefit costs for retail and corporate associates;

Costs associated with the Company’s sourcing operations;

Design and merchandising costs;

Freight costs associated with moving merchandise from suppliers to
the Company’s distribution center;
Costs associated with the movement of merchandise through customs;

Occupancy costs for retail and corporate facilities;

Costs associated with the fulfillment and shipment of client orders
from the Company’s Websites, including omni-channel sales;

Advertising and marketing costs;

Depreciation related to merchandise management systems;

Occupancy and other costs associated with operating the Company’s
distribution center;

Sample development costs;

Freight expenses associated with moving merchandise from the
Company’s distribution center to its retail stores or from store to store;
and

Direct costs of the credit card client loyalty program;

Legal, finance, information systems and other corporate overhead costs.

Depreciation related to retail and corporate assets;

Merchandise shortage; and

Client shipping costs for store merchandise shipments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and short-term highly liquid investments with original maturity dates of three months or less at time of purchase and no redemption restrictions
are considered cash and cash equivalents. The Company has significant amounts of cash and cash equivalents invested in deposit accounts at FDIC-insured
financial institutions that are currently in excess of federally insured limits. The Company continually evaluates its deposit investment options in accordance
with its corporate investment policy and certain restrictions on permitted investments in the revolving credit facility.

Merchandise Inventories
Merchandise inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or market, at the individual item level. A reserve is established when the current selling
price or future estimated selling price is less than cost. Physical inventory counts are performed annually in January, and estimates are made for shortage
between the date of the physical inventory count and the balance sheet date.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are presented at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straightline basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Building
Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Software

40 years
10 years or term of lease, if shorter
2-10 years

5 years
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Property and Equipment (continued)
When assets are sold or retired, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from their respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss
is recorded to “Selling, general and administrative expenses” in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. Expenditures for maintenance and
repairs which do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed as incurred.

Store Pre-Opening Costs
Non-capital expenditures, such as rent, advertising and payroll costs incurred prior to the opening of a new store are charged to expense in the period
they are incurred.

Internal-Use Software Development Costs
The Company capitalizes certain external and internal computer software and software development costs incurred during the application development
stage. The application development stage generally includes software design and configuration, coding, testing and installation activities. Capitalized costs
include only external direct cost of materials and services consumed in developing or obtaining internal-use software, and payroll and payroll-related costs for
employees who are directly associated with and devote time to the internal-use software project. Capitalization of such costs ceases no later than the point at
which the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended use. Training and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred, while upgrades and
enhancements are capitalized if it is probable that such expenditures will result in additional functionality. Capitalized software costs are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over five years .

Deferred Rent Obligations
Rent expense under non-cancelable operating leases with scheduled rent increases or free rent periods is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
initial lease term beginning on the date of initial possession, which is generally when the Company has access to the space and begins construction build-out.
Any reasonably assured renewals are considered. The amount of the excess of straight-line rent expense over scheduled payments is recorded as a deferred
liability. Construction allowances and other such lease incentives are recorded as deferred credits and are amortized on a straight-line basis as a reduction of
rent expense beginning in the period they are deemed to be earned, which often is subsequent to the date of initial possession and generally coincides with the
store opening date. The current portion of unamortized deferred lease costs and construction allowances is included in “Accrued tenancy” and the long-term
portion is included in “Deferred lease costs” on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Lease Termination Costs
The Company recognizes contractual penalties associated with lease terminations on an undiscounted basis at the time notification to terminate the lease
is provided to the lessor.

Long-Lived Assets
Long-lived assets are reviewed periodically for impairment or when events or changes in circumstances indicate that full recoverability of net asset
balances through future cash flows is in question. Assessment for possible impairment is based on the Company’s ability to recover the carrying value of the
long-lived asset from the expected future pre-tax cash flows at a store level (undiscounted and without interest charges). The expected future pre-tax cash flows
are estimated based on historical experience, knowledge and market data. Estimates of future cash flows require the Company to make assumptions and to
apply judgment, including forecasting future sales and expenses and estimating the useful lives of assets. These estimates can be affected by factors such as,
but not necessarily limited to, future store results, real estate demand, and economic conditions that can be difficult to predict. If the expected future cash flows
related to the long-lived assets are less than the assets’ carrying value, an impairment charge is recognized for the difference between estimated fair value and
carrying value. There were no material impairment charges in Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 or Fiscal 2011.

49

ANN INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Advertising
Costs associated with the production of advertising, such as print and other costs, as well as costs associated with communicating advertising that has
been produced, such as magazine ads, are expensed when the advertising first appears in public. Costs of direct mail catalogs and postcards are fully
expensed when the advertising is scheduled to first arrive in clients’ homes. Advertising costs were approximately $110.2 million, $96.2 million and $88.4
million in Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, respectively.

Stock-based Awards
The Company estimates the fair value of non-qualified stock options on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair value
of restricted stock awards is determined using the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Performance-based awards are generally
subject to annual vesting based on the achievement of seasonal performance targets. The Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense over the
requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period, adjusted for estimated forfeitures, and for performance-based awards, based on the estimated
achievement of seasonal performance targets. The Company estimates forfeitures based on an analysis of historical stock-based forfeiture rates, as well as
current and future trends of expected behavior.

Long-Term Performance Compensation Expense
The Company recognizes the compensation cost associated with its Restricted Cash Program (“RCP”) over the mandatory service period, adjusted for
estimated forfeitures. The service period includes the fiscal year in which amounts earned under the program are banked, plus a mandatory three-year deferral
period. The calculation of long-term performance compensation expense related to the RCP requires the input of subjective assumptions, including the expected
forfeiture of earned and banked awards and forecasts of the Company’s future income growth. The Company estimates forfeitures based on historical RCP
forfeiture patterns, as well as current and future trends of expected behavior, and estimates future income growth based on past performance, future business
trends and new business initiatives.

Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the asset and liability method. Under the asset and liability method, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized based on the differences between the financial statement carrying value of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
A valuation allowance is established for deferred tax assets when management anticipates that it is more likely than not that all, or a portion of these assets
would not be realized. In determining the need for a valuation allowance, management is required to make assumptions and to apply judgment, including
forecasting future earnings, taxable income, and the mix of earnings in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates.
The tax effects of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns are recognized only if they are “more likely-than-not” to be
sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits as of the reporting date. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements
from such positions are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The
Company recognizes estimated accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense.

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries file a consolidated Federal income tax return, while the Company’s foreign subsidiaries file in their
respective local jurisdictions.

Segments
The Company has determined that it has four operating segments: Ann Taylor, LOFT, Ann Taylor Factory and LOFT Outlet. The Company evaluates
whether two or more operating segments may be aggregated into a single operating segment based on whether or not the segments have similar economic
characteristics, similar product, similar production processes, similar clients and similar methods of distribution.

50

ANN INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Segments (continued)
The Company’s four operating segments are similar in nature of product, as they all operate in the women’s specialty retail sector, offering women’s
apparel, shoes and accessories sold primarily under the Ann Taylor and LOFT brand names. The Company’s four operating segments have similar clients
with a significant percentage of clients cross-shopping the Company’s other operating segments. The merchandise offered at each operating segment is also
sourced from the same countries and many of the same vendors, using similar production processes. Merchandise for the Company’s operating segments is
distributed to retail stores in a similar manner, primarily through the Company’s Louisville Distribution Center, and is subsequently distributed to clients in a
similar manner, through its retail and outlet stores. The Company’s Ann Taylor and LOFT operating segments also sell merchandise through the Company’s
Websites.
As such, the Company has concluded that its operating segments have similar economic characteristics and meet the criteria for aggregation into a single
reportable segment.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The Company determines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The Company uses a hierarchical structure to prioritize the inputs used to measure fair value into three broad
levels. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1), then to quoted market
prices for similar assets or liabilities in active or inactive markets (Level 2) and gives the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).

The Company did not have any non-financial assets or non-financial liabilities recognized at fair value on a recurring basis at February 1, 2014 or
February 2, 2013 .

Self-Insurance
The Company is self-insured for certain losses related to its employee point of service medical plan, its workers’ compensation plan, general liability
and for short-term and long-term disability, up to certain thresholds. Costs for self-insurance claims filed, as well as claims incurred but not reported, are
accrued based on estimates using information received from plan administrators, third-party actuaries, historical analysis and other relevant data.
Management believes that it has adequately reserved for its self-insurance liability, which is capped through the use of stop loss contracts with insurance
companies. Any significant variation from historical trends in claims incurred but not paid could cause actual expense to differ from the accrued liability.

Foreign Currency Translation
Balance Sheet accounts of the Company’s Canadian operations are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the end of each period. Statement of
Operations accounts are translated using the weighted average of the prevailing exchange rates during each period. Gains or losses resulting from foreign
currency transactions are included in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations under the caption “ Other non-operating expense, net ” whereas,
translation adjustments are reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income under the caption “ Foreign currency translation adjustment .”

Immaterial Correction of Statements of Cash Flows
As previously discussed in Revenue Recognition, the Company recognized $6.6 million in revenue for a portion of the unredeemed value of gift cards
and merchandise credits during Fiscal 2012. Subsequent to the issuance of its Fiscal 2012 consolidated financial statements, the Company determined that
this amount was incorrectly reported as an increase, rather than a reduction, in the reconciliation of Net income to Net cash provided by operating activities.
This correction also impacted the line item “ Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities ” in the changes in assets and liabilities section of
net cash provided by operating activities, but had no impact on total Net cash provided by operating activities. The Company has restated the previously
presented Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for Fiscal 2012 to present “Recognition of gift card and merchandise credit breakage” as a reduction to
reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities and properly state the change in “ Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current
liabilities” as an increase of $5.6 million (previously reported as a reduction of $7.6 million ).
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There were no new accounting pronouncements that the Company expects to have a material impact on its financial condition or results of operations in
future periods.
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2. Fair Value Measurements
At February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 , the Company had $11.4 million and $8.1 million , respectively, invested in a self-directed, non-qualified
deferred compensation plan (the “Deferred Compensation Plan”) for certain executives at the vice-president level and above, which is structured as a rabbi
trust. These investments are classified as trading securities and are recorded as a long-term asset, included in “Other assets,” on the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Unrealized holding gains and losses are included in “Interest and investment income/(expense), net” on the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Operations. See Note 9, “Retirement Plans,” for further discussion of the Deferred Compensation Plan.

The Company follows a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. This hierarchy requires entities to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:

•

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

•

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for markets that are not active; or other inputs that
are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

•

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
This includes certain pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques that use significant unobservable inputs.

Investment assets of the rabbi trust are valued based on quoted market prices or the net asset value at the closing price reported in certain major markets
as of the measurement date, which are considered Level 1 inputs. The following tables segregate the rabbi trust assets that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis into the most appropriate level within the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to determine fair value at the measurement date:

February 1,
2014

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs

(Level 3)

(in thousands)

Non-qualified deferred compensation plan assets
Equity securities

$

3,698 $
6,944
782
11,424 $

Equity funds
Fixed income funds
Total assets

$

February 2,
2013

3,698 $
6,944
782
11,424 $
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

— $
—
—
— $
Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

—
—
—
—

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs

(Level 3)

(in thousands)

Non-qualified deferred compensation plan assets
Equity securities

$

3,868 $
3,683
572
8,123 $

Equity funds
Fixed income funds
Total assets

$

3,868 $
—
—
3,868 $

— $
3,683
572
4,255 $

—
—
—
—

At February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 , the Company believes that the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables
approximates fair value, due to the short maturity of these financial instruments.
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3. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of the following:
February 1,
2014

February 2,
2013

(in thousands)

$

Land
Buildings
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Computer equipment and software
Assets under construction
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net property and equipment

$

1,056 $
13,464
638,807
330,981
243,558
21,803
1,249,669
(806,583)
443,086 $

1,056
13,393
593,578
300,604
248,103
22,522
1,179,256
(769,553)
409,703

Depreciation and amortization expense was approximately $106.6 million, $97.8 million and $94.2 million in Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal
2011, respectively.
4. Revolving Credit Facility

On December 19, 2012, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, AnnTaylor, Inc., and certain of its subsidiaries, entered into a Fourth Amended and
Restated $250 million senior secured revolving credit facility with Bank of America, N.A. and a syndicate of lenders (the “New Credit Facility”), which
amended the then existing senior secured revolving credit facility due to expire in April 2013 (collectively, the “Credit Facility”). The New Credit Facility,
which expires on December 19, 2017 , includes a $75 million sub-facility solely for loans and letters of credit to be provided to ANN Canada Inc., a wholly
owned subsidiary of AnnTaylor, Inc. and an option to expand the total facility and the aggregate commitments thereunder up to $400 million , subject to the
lenders’ agreement to increase their commitment for the requested amount. The Credit Facility may be used for working capital, letters of credit and other
corporate purposes, and contains an acceleration clause which, upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, including but not limited to, a Material Adverse
Effect, as defined in the Credit Facility, may cause any outstanding borrowings to become immediately due and payable.

The maximum availability for loans and letters of credit under the New Credit Facility is governed by a quarterly borrowing base, determined by the
application of specified percentages to certain eligible assets, primarily accounts receivable and inventory. Commercial and standby letters of credit
outstanding under the Credit Facility totaled approximately $11.0 million, $14.1 million and $16.7 million as of February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and
January 28, 2012 , respectively, leaving a remaining available balance for loans and letters of credit of $171.4 million , $150.8 million and $146.4 million as
of February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 , respectively. There were no borrowings outstanding under the Credit Facility at February 1,
2014, February 2, 2013 , or as of March 14, 2014 , the date of this Report.

Amounts outstanding under the New Credit Facility bear interest at a rate equal to, at the option of AnnTaylor, Inc., 1) the Base Rate, defined as the
higher of (i) the federal funds rate plus a margin of 0.50% and (ii) the Bank of America prime rate, or 2) the LIBOR Rate (as defined in the New Credit
Facility); plus in each case, an applicable margin, which is between 0.25% and 0.50% for Base Rate loans, and between 1.25% and 1.50% for LIBOR loans,
depending on the Average Daily Availability as defined in the New Credit Facility. In addition, AnnTaylor, Inc. is required to pay the lenders a monthly
commitment fee on the unused revolving loan commitment at a rate ranging from 0.20% to 0.25% per annum. Fees for outstanding commercial and standby
letters of credit under the New Credit Facility range from 0.50% to 0.625% and from 1.25% to 1.50%, respectively. The Credit Facility contains financial and
other covenants, including limitations on indebtedness and liens, and a fixed charge coverage ratio covenant that is triggered if certain liquidity thresholds are
not met.

The Credit Facility permits the Company to pay cash dividends (and permits dividends by AnnTaylor, Inc. to fund such cash dividends) subject to
certain Liquidity requirements (as defined in the Credit Facility) and other conditions as set forth in the Credit Facility. Subject, in some cases, to specific
exceptions, certain subsidiaries of the Company are also permitted to pay dividends to the Company to fund certain taxes owed by the Company, fund
ordinary operating expenses of the Company not in excess of $500,000 in any fiscal year, repurchase common stock held by employees not in excess of
100,000 in any fiscal year and for certain other stated purposes.
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The lenders have been granted a security interest in the inventory and accounts receivable of AnnTaylor, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries, as collateral
for obligations under the New Credit Facility.
5. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases
The Company occupies its retail stores and administrative facilities under operating leases, most of which are non-cancelable. Most of the store leases
grant the Company the right to extend the term for one or two additional five-year periods under substantially the same terms and conditions as the original
leases. Most store leases also contain early termination options, which can be exercised by the Company under specific conditions. Most of the store leases
require payment of a specified minimum rent, plus contingent rent based on a percentage of the store’s net sales in excess of a specified threshold. In addition,
most of the leases require payment of real estate taxes, insurance and certain common area maintenance (“CAM”) costs in addition to the future minimum lease
payments. The Company also leases certain office equipment for its corporate offices and store locations under non-cancelable operating leases, which
generally have three-year terms.
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases as of February 1, 2014 are as follows:
Fiscal Year

(in thousands)

2014

$

215,702
202,597
175,213
160,539
135,942
428,312
1,318,305
(11,201)
$ 1,307,104

2015
2016
2017
2018
Thereafter
Total

Less sublease rentals
Net rentals

The minimum lease payments presented above do not include CAM charges or real estate taxes, which are also contractual obligations under the
Company’s store and office operating leases, but are generally not fixed and can fluctuate from year to year. Total CAM charges and real estate taxes for Fiscal
2013, Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 were $84.4 million , $78.8 million and $70.4 million , respectively.

Rent expense, excluding CAM charges and real estate taxes, for the fiscal years ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 was
as follows:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,
2014

February 2,
2013

January 28,
2012

(in thousands)

$

Minimum rent
Percentage rent

Total

$

218,640 $
1,782
220,422 $

212,947 $
2,911
215,858 $

200,825
2,460
203,285

Legal Proceedings
The Company is subject to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of its business. Although the amount of any liability
that could arise with respect to these actions cannot be determined with certainty, in the Company’s opinion, any such liability will not have a material adverse
effect on its consolidated financial position, consolidated results of operations or liquidity.
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Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income associated with common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share assumes the issuance of additional shares of common stock by the Company upon exercise of all
outstanding stock options and contingently issuable securities if the effect is dilutive, in accordance with the treasury stock method.

The determination and reporting of earnings per share requires the inclusion of time- and performance-based restricted stock as participating securities,
since they have the right to share in dividends, if declared, equally with common shareholders. During periods of net income, participating securities are
allocated a proportional share of net income determined by dividing total weighted average participating securities by the sum of total weighted average common
shares and participating securities (“the two-class method”). During periods of net income, participating securities have the effect of diluting both basic and
diluted earnings per share. During periods of net loss, no effect is given to participating securities, since they do not share in the losses of the Company.

The following table presents a reconciliation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the fiscal years ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and
January 28, 2012 , respectively.
Fiscal Year Ended

February 2, 2013

February 1, 2014

January 28, 2012

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Per

Basic Earnings per Share

Income

Net income

$

102,430

Less net income associated with
participating securities
Basic earnings per share

$

100,447

$

102,430

Per

Share

Net

Shares

Amount

Income

Shares

45,490

$

2.21

1,470
$ 101,115

47,494

$

2.13

Share

Net

Amount

$ 102,585

1,983

Per

Share

Net

Income

$

86,566

$

1,455
85,111

$

86,566

Shares

Amount

51,200

$

1.66

829
52,029

$

1.64

Diluted Earnings per Share
Net income
Less net income associated with
participating securities
Effect of dilutive securities
Diluted earnings per share

$ 102,585

1,963
$

100,467

1,452
465
45,955

1,432
600

$

2.19

$

101,133

48,094

$

2.10

$

85,134

Non-participating securities (stock options) representing 563,480, 1,381,750 and 2,028,204 shares of common stock were excluded from the above
computation of weighted average shares for diluted earnings per share for Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, respectively, due to their antidilutive
effect, since their exercise prices exceeded the average market price of the common shares during the periods.
In addition, non-participating securities (performance-based restricted units) representing 11,918 and 14,125 shares of common stock were excluded
from the above computations of weighted-average shares for diluted earnings per share for Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, respectively, due to the fact that they
are contingently issuable securities whose contingency was not met at certain dates during the fiscal year. No such shares were excluded from the computation
of weighted average shares for diluted earnings per share for Fiscal 2013 .
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7. Equity and Incentive Compensation Plans
Preferred Stock

At February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012, there were two million shares of preferred stock, par value $0.01, authorized and
unissued.
Repurchase Program
On August 21, 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a new $250 million securities repurchase program (the “Repurchase Program”). The
Repurchase Program will expire when the Company has repurchased all securities authorized for repurchase thereunder, unless terminated earlier by the
Company’s Board of Directors. Purchases of shares of common stock may be made from time to time, subject to market conditions and at prevailing market
prices, through open market purchases or in privately negotiated transactions. Repurchased shares of common stock increase treasury shares available for
general corporate purposes. There were no repurchases made under the Repurchase Program during Fiscal 2013 . As of February 1, 2014 and March 14, 2014 ,
the date of this Report, $250 million remained available for share repurchase under the Repurchase Program.
During Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, under its then existing $600 million securities repurchase program, the Company repurchased 1.5
million, 4.9 million and 7.3 million shares of its common stock, respectively, through open market purchases at a cost of $49 million , $135 million and
$175 million , respectively. There were no amounts remaining for additional share repurchases under the Company’s former securities repurchase program, as
it was fully exhausted during the second quarter of Fiscal 2013.

Associate Discount Stock Purchase Plan

In Fiscal 1999, the Company established an Associate Discount Stock Purchase Plan (the “Stock Purchase Plan”). Under the terms of the Stock
Purchase Plan, as amended, eligible employees may purchase shares of the Company’s common stock quarterly, at a price equal to 85% of the lower of the
closing price of the Company’s common stock at the beginning or end of each quarterly stock purchase period. Participating employees pay for their stock
purchases under the Stock Purchase Plan by authorizing limited payroll deductions of up to a maximum of 15% of their compensation. During Fiscal 2013 ,
75,969 shares were issued pursuant to the Stock Purchase Plan, at an average discount of $4.64 per share. At February 1, 2014 , there were 1,352,527
shares available for future issuance under the Stock Purchase Plan. The Company recorded approximately $0.5 million , $0.6 million and $0.6 million in
compensation expense related to the Stock Purchase Plan during Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, respectively.
Stock Incentive Plans
The Company has two active stock incentive plans (the “Plans”), which are summarized below:
Shares Reserved
Defined
Name

2002 Plan
2003 Plan

Plan Name

Restricted
Stock/Units (1)

2002 Stock Option and Restricted Stock and Unit
Award Plan
2003 Equity Incentive Plan

787,500
7,434,432

Total
Authorized

4,500,000
13,424,432

Shares Reserved
for Issuance at
February 1, 2014

228,102
5,044,119

Shares
Available
for Future
Grant

—
3,072,502

(1) Included in the number of total authorized shares. The Company may issue restricted stock or restricted unit grants up to the levels
provided under each plan, however shares not used for this purpose are available for issuance as stock option grants.
On May 30, 2013, the Company’s shareholders approved certain amendments to the Company’s 2003 Equity Incentive Plan, including increasing the
total authorized shares reserved for issuance from 11.75 million to 13.4 million common shares.
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7. Equity and Incentive Compensation Plans (Continued)
Stock Incentive Plans (continued)
Stock option awards outstanding under the Company’s Plans are granted at exercise prices which are equal to the market value of the Company’s
common stock on the grant date (determined in accordance with the applicable Plan), generally vest over three years and expire no later than ten years after the
grant date. Each of the Plans also includes an acceleration clause by which all options not exercisable by their terms will, upon the occurrence of certain
contingent events, become exercisable. Shares underlying stock award grants are generally issued out of treasury stock. The Plans allow for restricted stock
awards and restricted unit awards. A restricted unit represents the right to receive a share of common stock and/or the cash value of a share of common stock
on the date the restrictions on the restricted unit lapse. The restrictions on restricted stock or restricted unit grants generally lapse over a three-year period from
the date of the grant. Certain executives also receive performance-based restricted stock, which generally vest over three years if certain pre-established goals are
met. In the event a grantee terminates employment with the Company, any unvested stock options and any restricted stock or restricted units still subject to
restrictions are generally forfeited.

General
Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from initial estimates. In Fiscal
2013, Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, stock-based compensation expense was recorded net of estimated forfeitures, such that expense was recorded only for
those stock-based awards that are expected to vest.
During the fiscal years ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 , the Company recognized approximately $16.3 million , $17.0
million and $20.7 million , respectively, in total stock-based compensation expense. Stock-based compensation expense is included on the same income

statement line item as the cash compensation paid to the recipient of the stock-based award, with the majority of this stock-based compensation expense
included in selling, general and administrative expenses. The associated tax benefit recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal years
ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 was approximately $6.2 million , $7.9 million and $10.0 million , respectively.

In addition, cash flows resulting from tax deductions in excess of the cumulative compensation cost recognized for stock-based compensation
arrangements (“excess tax benefits”) are classified as financing cash flows. For the fiscal years ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28,
2012, excess tax benefits realized from stock-based compensation arrangements were $3.0 million , $9.2 million and $7.6 million , respectively. The Company
received $12.6 million, $34.8 million a n d $8.5 million in cash from the exercise of stock options during the fiscal years ended February 1,
2014, February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 , respectively.
Stock Options
The Company recognizes stock option expense equal to the grant date fair value of a stock option on a straight-line basis over the requisite service
period, which is generally the vesting period, net of estimated forfeitures. As of February 1, 2014 , there was $3.4 million of unrecognized compensation cost
related to unvested options, which is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted average vesting period of 1.6 years. The total intrinsic value of
options exercised was approximately $7.3 million , $26.1 million and $13.3 million during Fiscal 2013 , Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011, respectively.
The following table summarizes stock option activity for the fiscal year ended February 1, 2014 :
Weighted

Average
Shares

Options outstanding at February 2, 2013
Granted (1)
Exercised
Forfeited or expired

Options outstanding at February 1, 2014
Vested and exercisable at February 1, 2014

Options expected to vest in the future as of February 1, 2014

Exercise
Price

2,785,102 $
118,600
(572,072)
(131,911)
2,199,719 $

25.61
31.50
22.10
29.64
26.60

1,702,088 $

25.94

425,933 $

28.97

(1) Options granted during Fiscal 2013 vest annually over a three-year period, and expire ten years after the grant date.
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Stock Options (continued)
The weighted average fair value of options granted during the fiscal years ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 , estimated
as of the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, was $13.73, $12.47 and $13.20 per share, respectively. The weighted average remaining
contractual term for options outstanding at February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 was 5.1 and 5.9 years, respectively. The weighted average remaining
contractual term for options vested and exercisable at February 1, 2014 was 4.2 years. The weighted average remaining contractual term for options expected to
vest in the future at February 1, 2014 was 8.2 years. At February 1, 2014 , the aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding, options vested and exercisable
and options expected to vest was $14.4 million , $12.6 million , and $1.5 million , respectively.

Option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including expected stock price volatility. The Black-Scholes option pricing
model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. The fair value of
options granted under the Company’s Plans was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1, 2014

Expected volatility

50.9%
0.9%
4.9
—

Risk-free interest rate
Expected life (years)
Dividend yield

February 2,
2013

54.6%
0.9%
4.4

—

January 28,
2012

57.2%
1.7%
4.5
—

The risk-free rate is based on a zero-coupon U.S. Treasury rate in effect at the time of grant with maturity dates that coincide with the expected life of the
options. The expected life of the options is based on a calculation of the Company’s historical exercise patterns to estimate future exercise patterns. The expected
volatility for grants is based on a simple average of (i) historical volatility of stock price returns using daily closing prices and (ii) the volatility implied by

exchange-traded call options to purchase the Company’s common stock, to the extent sufficient data for the latter is available. Historical volatility was
calculated as of the grant date using stock price data over periods of time equal in duration to the expected life of the options granted. In assessing implied
volatility data, the Company analyzed call option market activity during the three-month period preceding the grant date. The Company also considered the
volume of market activity of the underlying shares and traded options, the similarity of the exercise prices of traded options to the exercise price of employee
stock options during the period and traded options whose terms are close to the expected term of the employee stock options.

Restricted Stock
The fair value of restricted stock awards is based on the market price of the Company’s stock on the date of grant (determined in accordance with the
applicable Plan) and is amortized to compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period, net of
estimated forfeitures. As of February 1, 2014 , there was $11.2 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested restricted stock awards, which
is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted average vesting period of 1.8 years. The weighted average grant date fair value of restricted stock awards
granted during the fiscal years ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 was $30.87, $28.18, and $27.65, respectively. The total
fair value of restricted stock awards vested during the fiscal years ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 was $8.4 million , $11.7
million and $14.2 million , respectively.
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Restricted Stock (continued)
The following table summarizes restricted stock activity for the fiscal year ended February 1, 2014 :
Time - Based

Performance - Based
Weighted

Number of
Shares

Restricted stock awards at February 2, 2013
Granted
Vested
Forfeited

Restricted stock awards at February 1, 2014

Weighted

Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

461,396
405,528
(190,108)
(74,611)
602,205

$

27.96
30.87

(1)

Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Number of
Shares

27.49
28.92
29.95

203,671
184,699 (2)
(82,633)
(15,802)
289,935

$

27.81
30.86
27.92
30.75
29.56

(1) Of this amount, 181,500 shares vest in equal installments in each of March 2014, 2015 and 2016; 179,100 shares vest in March 2016; 27,628
shares vest in May 2014; 13,000 shares vest in equal installments in each of June 2014, 2015 and 2016; and 4,300 shares vest in equal
installments in each of November 2014, 2015 and 2016.
(2) Of this amount, 175,500 of these shares vest over a three-year period based on achievement of performance targets set bi-annually for each
tranche of the grant. Based on Company performance, grantees may earn 50% to 150% of the shares granted with respect to each tranche. If the
Company does not achieve the minimum threshold goal associated with such shares, grantees will not earn any shares with respect to that
tranche. In addition, 3,138 of these shares relate to over achievement of the Spring 2012 tranche and vested in March 2013 and 6,061 of these
shares relate to the over achievement of the Spring 2013 tranche and will vest in March 2014.
Restricted Units
The fair value of restricted units is based on the market price of the Company’s stock on the date of grant (determined in accordance with the applicable
Plan) and is amortized to compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period, net of estimated
forfeitures. The total fair value of restricted unit awards vested during the fiscal year ended February 1, 2014 was $3.8 million . As of February 1, 2014 , there
were no outstanding restricted units as all previously outstanding restricted unit awards vested in shares during the first quarter of Fiscal 2013.
The following table summarizes restricted unit activity for the fiscal year ended February 1, 2014 :
Time - Based

Performance - Based
Weighted

Number of
Shares

Restricted unit awards at February 2, 2013
Vested
Restricted unit awards at February 1, 2014

75,016
(75,016)
—

Weighted

Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

$

Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Number of
Shares

19.58
19.58
—

46,003
(46,003)

—

$

19.58
19.58
—

Long-Term Performance Compensation
The Company maintains a long-term cash incentive program, the Restricted Cash Program (“RCP”), for vice-presidents and above. Corporate operating
profit is the performance metric applied in determining amounts earned under the RCP, and any such earnings are banked and mandatorily deferred until the
end of the third fiscal year following the earnings period. Amounts banked are adjusted upwards or downwards by the average percentage increase or decrease,
as the case may be, of the Company’s corporate net income performance over the mandatory three-year deferral period. Such corporate net income performance
may be modified for certain unusual or infrequently occurring events to avoid distorting operating fundamentals and thereby benefiting or penalizing
management for the financial impact of such unusual or infrequent events. The Company estimates corporate net income performance based on past results,
future business trends and new business initiatives.
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Long-Term Performance Compensation (continued)
In order to receive payments under the RCP, participants must be employed by the Company at the end of the mandatory three-year deferral period,
except in limited circumstances. Accordingly, amounts banked under the RCP are recorded as compensation expense on a pro-rata basis over the service
period, net of estimated forfeitures. The service period includes the fiscal year in which amounts earned under the program are banked, plus the mandatory
three-year deferral period. The Company estimates forfeitures based on historical RCP forfeiture patterns, as well as current and future trends of expected
behavior. Any adjustments to compensation expense associated with changes in corporate net income performance or estimated forfeiture rates during the
service period are accounted for as changes in estimate.

During the fiscal years ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 , the Company recognized $11.0 million, $18.5 million and
$29.2 million in compensation expense under the RCP inclusive of the effect of changes in estimates. As of February 1, 2014 , there was $22.9 million of
unrecognized compensation cost under the RCP, which is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted average deferral period of 2.5 years.
8. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the fiscal years ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 consists of the following:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,
2014

January 28,
2012

February 2,
2013
(in thousands)

Federal:

Current

$

Deferred
Total federal

57,631 $
(321)
57,310

24,276
54,680

37,956
12,361
50,317

12,654
(1,075)
11,579

5,174
5,421
10,595

11,809
(4,702)
7,107

(99)
(1,257)
(1,356)
67,533 $

702

(909)
(207)
65,068 $

773
(316)
457
57,881

30,404

$

State and local:

Current
Deferred

Total state and local
Foreign:

Current
Deferred
Total foreign

Total

$
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The reconciliation between the provision for income taxes and the expected provision for income taxes at the U.S. federal statutory rate of 35% for the
fiscal years ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 is as follows:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,

January 28,
2012

February 2,
2013

2014

(dollars in thousands)

$

U.S. operations
Foreign operations

173,287

$

170,896

(3,324)

Income before income taxes

Federal statutory rate
Provision for income taxes at federal statutory rate
State and local income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit
Non-deductible expenses
Settlements of tax examinations
Foreign
Other
Provision for income taxes

$

$

(3,243)

169,963
35%
59,487
6,962
2,068
—

167,653
35%
58,679
6,886
2,341
(4,113)

(507)
(477)
67,533

909
366
65,068

$

143,562
885
144,447

35%
50,556
4,620
1,700
267
354
384

$

57,881

The income tax provision reflects the current and deferred tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements or tax returns. U.S. federal income taxes are provided on unremitted foreign earnings, except those that are considered indefinitely
reinvested, which at February 1, 2014 amounted to approximately $3.1 million . However, if these earnings were not considered indefinitely reinvested, under
current law the incremental tax on such undistributed earnings would be approximately $0.6 million . The Company considers the earnings of certain nonU.S. subsidiaries to be indefinitely reinvested outside the United States and our current plans do not demonstrate a need to repatriate them to fund our U.S.
operations.

The tax effects of significant items comprising the Company’s deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as of February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 are as
follows:
As of

February 1,
2014

February 2,
2013

(in thousands)

Current:
Inventory
Accrued expenses and other
Deferred rent and lease incentives
Total gross deferred tax assets - current
Less: valuation allowance
Total net deferred tax assets - current

$

8,619 $
14,104

6,131
28,854
—
28,854

8,261
15,559
6,593
30,413

(16)
30,397

Non-current:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred rent and lease incentives
Benefits related
Other
Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total gross deferred tax assets - non-current
Less: valuation allowance
Total net deferred tax assets - non-current

$
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(95,171)
65,256
21,339
14,175
964
6,563
—
6,563 $

(91,062)
67,650
22,337
6,058
2,788
7,771
(158)
7,613
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At February 2, 2013, the Company had a valuation allowance of approximately $0.2 million , primarily related to certain non-U.S. alternative minimum
tax credits that, in the judgment of management, were not more likely than not to be realized prior to expiration. The realization of deferred tax assets depends
on the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences are deductible. In assessing the realizability of deferred tax
assets, management considered whether it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Management considers the
scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon this assessment,
management determined that it is more likely than not that these credits, for which a valuation allowance had been previously recorded, will be realized and, as
such, released the valuation allowance during Fiscal 2013.
At February 1, 2014 , the Company has approximately $10.1 million of domestic and foreign net operating loss carryforwards, of which $2.9 million
will expire in 2020 through 2021, and $7.2 million will expire in 2031 through 2033. In addition, the Company has $0.1 million of alternative minimum tax
credits in non-U.S. jurisdictions, which are available to reduce future income taxes, if any, over an indefinite period.
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:
(in thousands)

Balance at January 29, 2011
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year
Additions for tax positions of prior years
Reductions for tax positions of prior years
Lapses in statutes of limitation
Balance at January 28, 2012
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year
Additions for tax positions of prior years
Reductions for tax positions of prior years

$

708

786
(144)
(512)
7,797

383

396

Settlements
Lapses in statutes of limitation
Balance at February 2, 2013

Additions based on tax positions related to the current year
Additions for tax positions of prior years
Reductions for tax positions of prior years
Settlements
Lapses in statutes of limitation
Balance at February 1, 2014

6,959

$

(148)
(4,579)
(51)
3,798
639
1,102
(70)
(17)
(79)
5,373

To the extent these unrecognized tax benefits are ultimately recognized, approximately $4.7 million will impact the Company’s effective tax rate in a
future period. The Company anticipates that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits may be reduced within the next twelve months by approximately $1.3
million as a result of the settlement of certain tax examinations, lapses in statutes of limitations and voluntary tax filings for certain prior tax years.

The Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in its provision for income taxes. During Fiscal 2013 , the
Company recognized approximately $0.2 million in interest and penalties, net of related deferred taxes, on unrecognized tax benefits. During Fiscal 2012 , the
Company recognized approximately $1.8 million in net interest income in its provision for income taxes, primarily due to the interest benefit associated with
settlement of a U.S. federal tax examination. During Fiscal 2011, the Company recognized approximately $0.7 million in interest and penalties, net of related
deferred tax assets, on unrecognized tax benefits. The Company had approximately $1.8 million , $1.9 million and $4.8 million for the payment of interest
and penalties accrued at February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 , respectively.
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The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. Federal jurisdiction, and various state and local jurisdictions and generally remains open to income
tax examinations by relevant tax authorities for tax years beginning with Fiscal 2010. The Company also files income tax returns in foreign jurisdictions and
generally remains open to income tax examinations for tax years beginning with Fiscal 2009. The Company is under examination by certain state and local
jurisdictions. Although the outcome of these matters cannot currently be determined, the Company believes adequate provision has been made for any potential
unfavorable financial statement impact.
9. Retirement Plans

Savings Plan
Substantially all employees of the Company and its subsidiaries who are regular full-time employees or who work 1,000 hours during a 12-month
period are eligible to participate in the Company’s 401(k) Plan. Participants can contribute up to 100% of their annual earnings to the 401(k) Plan in any
combination of pre-tax, Roth 401(k) or after-tax contributions, subject to certain limitations. The Company matches 100% with respect to the first 3% and 50%
with respect to the second 3% of each participant’s contributions to the 401(k) Plan. Participants are 100% vested in the company matching contributions after
two years of service. The Company’s contributions to the 401(k) Plan for Fiscal 2013, Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 were approximately $8.0 million , $7.5
million and $6.8 million , respectively.

Pension Plan
The Company froze its non-contributory defined benefit pension plan (the “Pension Plan”) in October 2007. As a result, no additional associates became
participants in the Pension Plan, and no additional benefits were earned under the Pension Plan on or after October 1, 2007.
The following table provides information for the Pension Plan as of February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 :
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,
2014

February 2,
2013

(in thousands)

Change in benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year
Interest cost
Actuarial loss/(gain)
Benefits paid
Projected benefit obligation at end of year
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at end of year
Funded status at end of year
Net amount included in “Other liabilities”

$

34,250 $
1,418
(3,872)
(1,494)
30,302

$

26,417
1,528
(1,494)
26,451
(3,851)
(3,851) $

38,609
1,752
2,825
(8,936)
34,250
32,181
3,172
(8,936)
26,417
(7,833)
(7,833)

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Company’s Pension Plan was approximately $30.3 million and $34.3 million at February 1, 2014 and
February 2, 2013 , respectively. As a result of the Pension Plan freeze, the accumulated benefit obligation equals the projected benefit obligation.
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Pension Plan (continued)
The following table summarizes the components of net periodic benefit cost and other amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,
2014

February 2,
2013

January 28,
2012

(in thousands)

Net periodic benefit cost:
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of net loss
Settlement loss recognized
Net periodic benefit cost

$

1,418 $

1,752 $
(1,500)
726
1,760
2,738

(1,244)
600

—
774

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other
comprehensive loss:
Net loss/(gain) arising during the year
Settlement charge
Amortization of net loss
Total recognized in other comprehensive loss/(income)
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and other comprehensive
loss/(income)

(4,156)
—
(600)
(4,756)
$

1,153
(1,760)
(726)
(1,333)

(3,982) $

1,405 $

1,667
(1,729)
62
—
—

4,932
—
(62)
4,870
4,870

As a result of the Pension Plan freeze, the Company has no remaining prior service cost that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive
loss into net periodic benefit cost. When the total amount of lump sum payments made to Pension Plan participants exceeds the interest cost for the fiscal year,
a non-cash settlement charge is recorded. Since the total amount of lump sum payments made to plan participants was greater than the interest component of
pension expense during Fiscal 2012 , a non-cash settlement charges of $1.8 million was recorded and included in “Selling, general and administrative
expenses” in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. There were no such settlement charges in Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2011.
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss consist of:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,
2014

February 2,
2013

(in thousands)

$
$

Net actuarial loss
Total

2,551
2,551

$
$

7,307
7,307

For the fiscal years ended February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 the following weighted average assumptions were used to determine benefit obligations
at the end of the fiscal year:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,
2014

Discount rate

4.65%
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Pension Plan (continued)

For the fiscal years ended February 1, 2014 , February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012 the following weighted average assumptions were used to
determine net periodic benefit cost:
Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,
2014

Discount rate

4.35%
5.10%

Long-term rate of return on assets

February 2,
2013

4.85%
5.10%

January 28,
2012

5.75%
6.25%

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on Pension Plan assets, the Company considered the historical returns and the future expectations for
returns for each asset class, as well as the target asset allocation of the Pension Plan portfolio. The Company assumes that all employees will take lump-sum
payouts based on historical payout trends. The discount rate was developed using a yield curve which consists of spot interest rates for each of the next 30
years and is developed based on pricing and yield information for high quality corporate bonds, whose cash flows mirror the anticipated timing of future
benefit payments.
Since the Pension Plan was frozen in October 2007, its goal is to provide all plan benefits and expenses through growth and income from the Pension
Plan assets, with such employer contributions as may be required in accordance with applicable rules and regulations. Accordingly, the Company sets
recommended asset allocation percentages based upon the funded status of the Pension Plan. If the funded status is less than 100%, the recommended
allocation of Pension Plan Assets is 45% equity securities and 55% debt securities. If the funded status is greater than 100% but less than 110%, the
recommended allocation of Pension Plan assets is 25% equity securities and 75% debt securities. If the funded status is greater than 110%, the recommended
allocation of Pension Plan assets is 100% debt securities. The Company’s Investment Committee has the authority to override the target asset allocation or
adjust the timing of asset allocation changes to the extent considered necessary.

Pension Plan assets consist primarily of equity and fixed income funds or cash and cash equivalents. The equity securities do not include any of the
Company’s common stock. The Pension Plan’s principal investment objectives are: to minimize the volatility of the funding ratio and achieve a satisfactory
rate of return based on that objective, incur a reasonable pension cost in the long-term and satisfy its benefit obligations. The Pension Plan’s investment
performance guidelines are set and measured against appropriate portfolio benchmarks. The Pension Plan’s goals, objectives, asset allocation policies and
funding forecasts are reviewed periodically within any given plan year, or when significant changes have occurred in Pension Plan benefits, participant
demographics or funded status.

As discussed in Note 2, “Fair Value Measurements,” ASC 820-10 establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to
measure fair value. This hierarchy requires entities to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The investments
held by the Company’s Pension Plan, as well as their associated level within the fair value hierarchy, are shown below:
Mutual funds and money market funds:
Mutual funds of registered investment companies are traded in active markets and valued at the closing price reported on those major markets as
of the measurement date and, therefore, are classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. Short-term money market funds are valued at cost plus
accrued interest, which is considered Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

Common collective trusts:

These investments are valued using the Net Asset Value (“NAV”) provided by the administrators of the funds, based on the value of the
underlying assets owned by the fund or trust, minus its liabilities, and then divided by the number of shares outstanding. The unit price of these
investments are not quoted in an active market. However, the unit price is based on underlying investments which are either traded in an active
market or are valued based on observable inputs such as market interest rates and quoted prices for similar securities and, therefore, are classified in
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Pension Plan (continued)
The following tables segregate all financial assets and liabilities held by the Company’s Pension Plan as of February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (at least annually) into the most appropriate level within the fair value hierarchy, based on the inputs used to
determine fair value at the measurement date:

February 1,
2014

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs

(Level 3)

(in thousands)

Mutual funds:
Real estate

$

Total mutual funds
Common collective trusts:
Small blend
Mid cap blend
Large value
Large growth
Foreign large growth
Long-term bond
Total common collective trusts

Money market funds
Total assets

$

546 $
546

546 $
546

— $
—

—
—

901
1,036
2,627
2,735
1,355
16,980
25,634
271
26,451 $

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
271
817 $

901
1,036
2,627
2,735
1,355
16,980
25,634
—
25,634 $

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

February 2,
2013

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs

(Level 3)

(in thousands)

Mutual funds:
Real estate

$

534 $

Total mutual funds
Common collective trusts:
Small blend
Mid cap blend
Large value
Large growth
Foreign large growth
Long-term bond
Total common collective trusts

Money market funds
Total assets

$
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— $
—

534 $

534

534

—
—

1,010
983
2,496
2,971
1,543
16,445
25,448
435
26,417 $

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
— $

1,010
983
2,496
2,971
1,543
16,445
25,448
435
26,417 $

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
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Pension Plan (continued)
The benefits expected to be paid under the Pension Plan as of February 1, 2014 are as follows:
Fiscal Year

(in thousands)

$

2014

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019-2023

2,435
2,001
2,242
1,694
1,368
6,491

The Company made no contributions to the Pension Plan in Fiscal 2013, Fiscal 2012 or Fiscal 2011. Although the Company was not required to make a
contribution to the Pension Plan during these periods, any deterioration in the financial markets or changes in discount rates may require the Company to
make a contribution to its Pension Plan in Fiscal 2014 .

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan
Under the Company’s Deferred Compensation Plan, certain executives at the vice-president level and above may defer up to 50% of their salary and up
to 95% of cash-based performance compensation earned during a calendar year. Under the Deferred Compensation Plan, the Company matches the amount of

the base and bonus compensation deferred by the executive during the Plan year above the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a)(17) qualified plan
compensation limit as indexed on an annual basis (“Eligible Compensation”). The Company matches 100% on the first 3% of a participant’s deferred Eligible
Compensation, and 50% of a participant’s deferred Eligible Compensation over 3% and up to 6%. Amounts deferred and credited to the executive’s deferred
compensation account are at all times fully vested. The Company’s matching contribution vests upon the second anniversary of the executive’s date of hire, or
earlier upon a change in control (as defined under the Deferred Compensation Plan). The value of the Company’s matching contributions during Fiscal 2013 ,
Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2011 was immaterial.
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The following table summarizes the components of accumulated other comprehensive loss (“AOCL”) for fiscal years ended February 1, 2014 and
February 2, 2013 , respectively:
Foreign Currency
Translation

Unrecognized Pension
Benefit Costs

Total

(in thousands)

Balance at January 28, 2012

$

—

Other comprehensive income/(loss) before
reclassifications:
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Net actuarial loss
Amounts reclassified from AOCL (1):
Pension settlement charge
Amortization of net actuarial loss

Amounts reclassified from AOCL, before tax
Income tax expense
Net current period other comprehensive income, net of
tax

Balance at February 2, 2013
Other comprehensive income/(loss) before
reclassifications:
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Net actuarial gain
Amounts reclassified from AOCL (1):
Amortization of net actuarial loss
Amounts reclassified from AOCL, before tax

$

(5,318)

$

(5,318)

19
—

—
(1,153)

19
(1,153)

—
—
—
—

1,760
726
2,486
531

1,760
726
2,486
531

19
19

(4,516)

821
(4,497)

—
4,156

(1,309)
4,156

(1,309)
—

Income tax expense
Net current period other comprehensive income, net of
tax

Balance at February 1, 2014

$

802

—
—
—

600

600

1,824

1,824

(1,309)
(1,290) $

2,932
(1,584)

600

600

$

1,623
(2,874)

(1) Amount is included in net periodic pension cost, which is presented in “Selling, general and administrative expenses” on the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Operations. See Note 9, “Retirement Plans,” for further details.
During Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 , the Company reclassified income of $0.6 million ($0.4 million net of tax) and $2.5 million ($1.5 million net of
tax), respectively, from AOCL related to the Company’s employee benefit plan. During Fiscal 2011, the Company reclassified expense of $0.1 million ($0.1
million net of tax) from AOCL related to the Company’s employee benefit plan.
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11. Selected Quarterly Financial Data - Unaudited
Quarter
Fiscal 2013

Third

Second

First

Fourth

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Net sales
Gross margin
Net income
Basic earnings per share (2)
Diluted earnings per share (2)

$
$
$
$
$

574,506
320,565
20,912
0.45
0.44

$
$
$
$
$

638,198
349,277
35,649
0.76
0.76

$
$
$
$
$

657,532
366,220
41,189
0.90
0.89

$
$
$
$
$

623,255
307,246
4,680
0.10
0.10

Quarter
Fiscal 2012

Third

Second

First

Fourth

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Net sales (1)
Gross margin
Net income
Basic earnings per share (2)
Diluted earnings per share (2)

(1)
(2)

$
$
$
$
$

560,411
317,371
28,732
0.59
0.58

$
$
$
$
$

594,872
332,401

30,735
0.64
0.63

$
$
$
$
$

612,548
354,399
40,748

0.85
0.84

$
$
$
$
$

607,678
298,171
2,370
0.05
0.05

Includes $ 6.2 million in pre-tax revenue recorded during the third quarter of Fiscal 2012 for a portion of the unredeemed value of gift cards
and merchandise credits where the Company has determined that, under applicable state unclaimed property laws, there is no legal
obligation to escheat these amounts to such states and the likelihood of redemption is considered remote.
The sum of the quarterly per share data may not equal the annual amounts due to quarterly changes in the weighted average shares and
share equivalents outstanding.

12. Subsequent Event
On March 14, 2014 , the Company announced an organizational restructuring to support the further integration of its brick-and-mortar and online
channels and its strategic growth initiatives. As a result of the restructuring, the Company has downsized its corporate workforce, eliminating approximately
100 positions, including one of its named executive officers. The total pre-tax cash charge associated with this reduction in force is expected to be
approximately $15 million , substantially all of which is expected to be incurred during the first quarter of Fiscal 2014.
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Document

3.1

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (as amended through May 31, 2013). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Form 8-K of the Company filed on June 4, 2013.

3.2

Bylaws of the Company (as amended through March 15, 2011). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Form 8-K of the Company
filed on March 16, 2011.

10.1

Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of December 19, 2012, by and among AnnTaylor, Inc., Annco, Inc., AnnTaylor
Distribution Services, Inc., AnnTaylor Retail, Inc., Ann Card Services, Inc., ANN Canada Inc., the financial institutions from time to
time parties thereto, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative and collateral agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as syndication agent
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association as documentation agent (the “Credit Agreement”). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Form 10-K of the Company filed on March 8, 2013.

10.2

Fourth Amended and Restated Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of December 19, 2012, by AnnTaylor, Inc., ANN INC., Annco,
Inc., AnnTaylor Distribution Services, Inc., AnnTaylor Retail, Inc. and Ann Card Services, Inc. in favor of Bank of America, N.A., in its
capacity as administrative agent for each of the lenders party to the Credit Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form
10-K of the Company filed on March 8, 2013.

10.3

Fourth Amended and Restated Parent Guaranty, dated as of December 19, 2012, made by ANN INC. in favor of Bank of America, N.A.,
in its capacity as administrative agent for each of the lenders party to the Credit Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Form 10-K of the Company filed on March 8, 2013.

10.4

Agreement of Lease, dated as of August 3, 2004, between the Company and No. 1 Times Square Development LLC. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Form 10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended July 31, 2004 filed on September 8, 2004.

10.5

Amended and Restated Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of November 10, 2003, between the Company and AnnTaylor, Inc. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 10-K of the Company filed on March 25, 2004.

10.6†

The AnnTaylor Stores Corporation 1992 Stock Option and Restricted Stock and Unit Award Plan, Amended and Restated as of February
23, 1994 (the “1992 Plan”). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Form 10-K of the Company filed on May 1, 1997.

10.6.1†

First Amendment to the 1992 Plan, amended as of February 20, 1997. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15.1 to the Form 10-Q of
the Company for the Quarter ended August 2, 1997 filed on September 12, 1997.

10.6.2†

January 16, 1998 Amendment to the 1992 Plan, as amended. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Form 8-K of the Company
filed on March 13, 1998.

10.6.3†

May 12, 1998 Amendment to the 1992 Plan, as amended. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16.3 to the Form 10-Q of the Company
for the Quarter ended May 2, 1998 filed on June 16, 1998.

10.6.4†

Amendment to the 1992 Plan, effective as of March 10, 2000. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8.4 to the Form 10-K of the Company
filed on April 18, 2000.

10.6.5†

Second Restated Amendment to the 1992 Plan, effective as of March 9, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q of
the Company for the Quarter ended July 31, 2004 filed on September 8, 2004.

10.6.6†

Amendment to the 1992 Plan, effective as of January 26, 2006. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4.8 to the Form 10-K of the
Company filed on March 23, 2006.

10.7†

The AnnTaylor Stores Corporation 2000 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Award Plan (the “2000 Plan”). Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Form 10-K of the Company filed on April 1, 2003.

10.7.1†

First Amendment to the 2000 Plan, effective as of January 29, 2002. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.1 to the Form 10-K of the
Company filed on April 4, 2002.

10.7.2†

Second Restated Second Amendment to the 2000 Plan, effective as of March 9, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form
10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended July 31, 2004 filed on September 8, 2004.

10.7.3†

Third Amendment to the 2000 Plan, effective as of January 26, 2006. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5.5 to the Form 10-K of the
Company filed on March 23, 2006.
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10.7.4†

Fourth Amendment to the 2000 Plan, effective as of March 13, 2008. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Form 10-Q of the
Company for the Quarter ended May 3, 2008 filed on May 29, 2008.

10.8†

The AnnTaylor Stores Corporation 2002 Stock Option and Restricted Stock and Unit Award Plan (the “2002 Plan”). Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Form 10-K of the Company filed on April 4, 2002.

10.8.1†

First Amendment to the 2002 Plan, effective as of March 11, 2003. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q of the
Company for the Quarter ended May 3, 2003 filed on June 13, 2003.

10.8.2†

Second Restated Second Amendment to the 2002 Plan, effective as of March 9, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Form
10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended July 31, 2004 filed on September 8, 2004.

10.8.3†

Third Amendment to the 2002 Plan, effective as of January 26, 2006. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6.5 to the Form 10-K of the
Company filed on March 23, 2006.

10.8.4†

Fourth Amendment to the 2002 Plan, effective as of March 13, 2008. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Form 10-Q of the
Company for the Quarter ended May 3, 2008 filed on May 29, 2008.

10.9†

The ANN INC. 2003 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended through March 6, 2013, and the Amendment to The ANN INC. 2003 Equity
Incentive Plan, dated August 22, 2013. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended
August 3, 2013 filed on August 23, 2013.

10.10†

Amended and Restated AnnTaylor Stores Corporation Management Performance Compensation Plan (the “ATIP”). Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K filed on May 18, 2007.

10.10.1†

Amendment to the ATIP, effective as of March 13, 2008. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Form 10-Q of the Company for the
Quarter ended May 3, 2008 filed on May 29, 2008.

10.10.2†

Second Amendment to the ATIP, effective as of March 5, 2009. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12.2 to the Form 10-K of the
Company filed on March 9, 2009.

10.11†

Amended and Restated ANN INC. Management Performance Compensation Plan, as amended through March 7, 2012, and the
Amendment to the ANN INC. Management Performance Compensation Plan, dated November 19, 2013. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended November 2, 2013 filed on November 22, 2013.

10.12†

AnnTaylor Stores Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended through August 18, 2005. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Form 8-K of the Company filed on August 24, 2005.

10.13†

ANN INC. Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated as of November 16, 2011. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to the Form 10-K of the Company filed on March 9, 2012.

10.14†

AnnTaylor Stores Corporation Special Severance Plan (the “Special Severance Plan”), as amended through August 21, 2008. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Form 10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended November 1, 2008 filed on November 21, 2008.

10.14.1†

Amendment to the Special Severance Plan, effective as of November 13, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14.1 to the Form 10K of the Company filed on March 8, 2013.

10.15†

Form of 2002 Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Time-Vesting Options for Directors). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Form 8-K of the Company filed on October 29, 2004.

10.16†

Form of 2003 Plan Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement (Time-Vesting Options for Directors). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to the Form 8-K of the Company filed on October 29, 2004.

10.17†

Form of 2003 Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors (Time-Vesting Restricted Stock). Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Form 8-K of the Company filed on May 16, 2006.

10.18†

Form of 2000 Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Time-Vesting Options). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Form
10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended May 5, 2007 filed on June 8, 2007.

10.19†

Form of 2002 Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Time-Vesting Options). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Form
10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended May 5, 2007 filed on June 8, 2007.

10.20†

Form of 2003 Plan Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement (Time-Vesting Options). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8K of the Company filed on May 16, 2006.
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10.21†

Form of 2000 Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Time-Vesting Restricted Stock). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the
Form 10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended April 29, 2006 filed on June 7, 2006.

10.22†

Form of 2002 Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Time-Vesting Restricted Stock). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the
Form 10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended April 29, 2006 filed on June 7, 2006.

10.23†

Form of 2003 Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Time-Vesting Restricted Stock). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form
8-K of the Company filed on May 16, 2006.

10.24†

Form of 2002 Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Performance-Vesting Restricted Stock). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to
the Form 10-K of the Company filed on April 1, 2005.

10.25†

Form of 2003 Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement, as amended in 2013 (Performance-Vesting Restricted Stock). Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended May 4, 2013 filed on June 6, 2013.

10.26†

Form of Indemnification Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended July
30, 2011 filed on August 19, 2011.

10.27*†

Summary of Compensation Arrangements for Non-Employee Directors.

10.28†

Employment Agreement, effective as of October 1, 2005, between the Company and Katherine Lawther Krill. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10 to the Form 8-K of the Company filed on November 23, 2005.

10.28.1†

Amendment to Employment Agreement, effective as of December 19, 2008, between the Company and Katherine Lawther Krill.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32.1 to the Form 10-K of the Company filed on March 9, 2009.

10.29†

Letter Agreement, executed November 1, 2008, between the Company and Gary Muto. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form
10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended November 1, 2008 filed on November 21, 2008.

10.30†

Letter Agreement, executed September 10, 2007, between the Company and Michael J. Nicholson. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Form 8-K of the Company filed on September 17, 2007.

10.31†

Confidentiality, Non-solicitation of Associates and Non-competition Agreement, dated January 14, 2013, between the Company and
Katherine Hargrove Ramundo. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the Form 10-K of the Company filed on March 8, 2013.

10.32†

Confidentiality, Non-solicitation of Associates and Non-competition Agreement, dated November 6, 2008, between the Company and Gary

Muto. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended November 1, 2008 filed on
November 21, 2008.
10.32.1†

Amendment to Confidentiality, Non-solicitation of Associates and Non-competition Agreement between the Company and Gary Muto,
effective November 24, 2008. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37.1 to the Form 10-K of the Company filed on March 9, 2009.

10.32.2†

Amendment to Confidentiality, Non-solicitation of Associates and Non-competition Agreement between the Company and Gary Muto,
effective December 18, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32.2 to the Form 10-K of the Company filed on March 8, 2013.

10.33†

Confidentiality, Non-solicitation of Associates and Non-competition Agreement, dated June 9, 2008, between the Company and Brian
Lynch. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Form 10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended August 2, 2008 filed on August
22, 2008.

10.33.1†

Amendment to Confidentiality, Non-solicitation of Associates and Non-competition Agreement between the Company and Brian Lynch,
effective December 18, 2008. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38.1 to the Form 10-K of the Company filed on March 9, 2009.

10.33.2†

Second Amendment to Confidentiality, Non-solicitation of Associates and Non-competition Agreement between the Company and Brian
Lynch, effective January 30, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34.2 to the Form 10-K of the Company filed on March 9, 2012.

10.33.3†

Third Amendment to Confidentiality, Non-solicitation of Associates and Non-competition Agreement between the Company and Brian
Lynch, effective December 19, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33.3 to the Form 10-K of the Company filed on March 8,
2013.

72

ANN INC.
EXHIBIT INDEX
10.34†

Confidentiality, Non-solicitation of Associates and Non-competition Agreement, dated June 9, 2008, between the Company and Michael
Nicholson. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Form 10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended August 2, 2008 filed on
August 22, 2008.

10.35.1†

Amendment to Confidentiality, Non-solicitation of Associates and Non-competition Agreement between the Company and Michael
Nicholson, effective December 20, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35.1 to the Form 10-K of the Company filed on March 8,
2013.

10.36†

Form of 2003 Plan Restricted Unit Award Agreement (Time-Vesting Restricted Units). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to the Form

10-K of the Company filed on March 12, 2010.
10.37†

Form of 2003 Plan Restricted Unit Award Agreement (Performance-Vesting Restricted Units). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Form 10-Q of the Company for the Quarter ended October 30, 2010 filed on November 19, 2010.

21*

Subsidiaries of the Company.

23*

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

31.1*

Certification of chief executive officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2*

Certification of chief financial officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1

Certification of chief executive officer and chief financial officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

O

101.INS

XBRL Instance

101.SCH

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

101.CAL

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation

101.DEF

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition

101.LAB

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels

101.PRE

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation

* Filed electronically herewith.

O Furnished electronically herewith.
† Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENTS FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS
Annual Cash Retainers
Each Non-Employee Director is paid an annual retainer of $55,000 for service on the Board of Directors of ANN INC.
(the “Company”).
Each Audit Committee member will receive an additional annual retainer of $15,000 and each Compensation
Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee member will receive an additional annual retainer of
$10,000.
The Chair of the Audit Committee receives an additional annual retainer of $30,000 and the Chairs of the Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee and the Compensation Committee each receive an additional annual retainer of
$20,000.
Payment of Cash Retainers
The annual retainers described under the heading “Annual Cash Retainers” shall be earned ratably over the fiscal
year and paid in arrears in quarterly installments based on a fiscal quarter by the 15 th of the month following the end of each
fiscal quarter. In the event a Non-Employee Director ceases serving as a Non-Employee Director, or in the applicable
positions described under the heading “Annual Cash Retainers” for any reason, the retainer paid to such Non-Employee
Director shall be pro-rated for the portion of such fiscal quarter actually served as a Non-Employee Director, or in such
positions, as applicable.
Grant of Restricted Shares of Common Stock
In connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders, each Non-Employee Director receives an annual grant of
restricted shares of Company Common Stock (“Common Stock”) valued at $115,000 on the “grant date” (determined in
accordance with the Policy on Grant of Equity Awards).
If a Non-Employee Director joins the Board of Directors after an Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the Director shall
receive a pro-rated amount of the annual grant of restricted stock, based on the portion of the year the Director served and
according to the following schedule:
•

if a Non-Employee Director is appointed to the Board within 90 days after an Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the
Director shall receive a grant of restricted stock valued at $115,000 on the “grant date” (determined in accordance with
the Policy on Grant of Equity Awards);

•

if a Non-Employee Director is appointed to the Board within between 91 days and 270 days after an Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, the Director shall receive a grant of restricted stock valued at $57,500 on the “grant date” (determined in
accordance with the Policy on Grant of Equity Awards); and

•

if a Non-Employee Director is appointed to the Board 271 or more days after an Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the
Director shall not receive any grant of restricted stock prior to the date of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The number of shares granted to each such Director is determined by using the “fair market value” of the Common
Stock on the grant date. The “fair market value” is the closing price of the Common Stock on the preceding business day. The
restricted shares of Common Stock vest on the date of the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders. If a Director ceases to be a
Director for any reason prior to the date of the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the unvested restricted shares will be
forfeited.

Non-Executive Chairman Retainer
The Non-Executive Chairman of the Board receives an additional annual retainer of $125,000, comprised of $60,000
in cash and a grant of restricted shares of Common Stock valued at $65,000 on the “grant date”. The number of shares
granted to the Non-Executive Chairman is determined by the same method as the annual grant to Non-Employee Directors.
The restricted shares of Common Stock vest on the date of the next annual meeting of the Board of Directors. If the NonExecutive Chairman ceases to be the Non-Executive Chairman for any reason prior to the date of the next annual meeting of
the Board of Directors, the unvested restricted shares will be forfeited.
The Non-Executive Chairman’s $60,000 annual cash retainer shall be earned ratably over the fiscal year and paid in
arrears in quarterly installments based on a fiscal quarter by the 15 th of the month following the end of each fiscal quarter. If the
Non-Executive Chairman ceases to be the Non-Executive Chairman for any reason, the retainer paid to such Non-Executive
Chairman shall be pro-rated for the portion of the fiscal quarter actually served as a Non-Executive Chairman.
Travel Expense Reimbursements and Other Benefits
Directors are entitled to reimbursement of their reasonable travel expenses for attending Board of Directors and Board
Committee meetings. Travel arrangements should be made by calling Ultramar Travel Management International, ANN INC.’s
third party travel agency services provider, at 1-866-856-0441. Directors should identify themselves as members of the
Board of Directors when speaking to the Ultramar agent. The Corporate Secretary’s Office will arrange for reimbursement upon
receiving receipts for any related out-of-pocket expenses.
Non-Employee Directors are also eligible to receive discounts on their purchases of the Company’s products under the
same terms and conditions available to Company associates.

Exhibit 21

Subsidiaries of ANN INC.

AnnTaylor, Inc., incorporated in Delaware
AnnTaylor Sourcing Far East Limited, incorporated in Hong Kong
ANN Canada Inc., incorporated under the federal laws of Canada
AnnTaylor Distribution Services, Inc., incorporated in Delaware
AnnTaylor Travel, Inc., incorporated in Delaware
AnnTaylor Retail, Inc., incorporated in Florida
Annco, Inc., incorporated in Delaware
AnnTaylor of Puerto Rico, Inc., incorporated in Puerto Rico
ANN Card Services, Inc., incorporated in Florida

Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 33-52389, 33-54387, 33-55629, 333-32977, 33337145, 333-79921, 333-38174, 333-53502, 333-90954, 333-97005, 333-105914, 333-138191, 333-139959, 333-155958,
333-155959, 333-168997, 333-168998 and 333-190797 on Form S-8 of our report dated March 14, 2014 relating to the financial
statements of ANN INC., and the effectiveness of ANN INC.’s internal control over financial reporting, appearing in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K of ANN INC. for the year ended February 1, 2014.
/S/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, New York
March 14, 2014

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kay Krill, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of ANN INC.;
2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4.

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent

fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.

Date:

March 14, 2014

/s/ Kay Krill
Kay Krill
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael J. Nicholson, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of ANN INC.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Date:

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

March 14, 2014

/s/ Michael J. Nicholson
Michael J. Nicholson
Executive Vice President,
Chief Operating Officer,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ANN INC. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the period ended February 1, 2014 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Report"), we, Kay Krill, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Michael J. Nicholson, Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that to the best of each of our knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date:

March 14, 2014

/s/ Kay Krill
Kay Krill
Chief Executive Officer

Date:

March 14, 2014

/s/ Michael J. Nicholson
Michael J. Nicholson
Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to ANN INC. and will be retained by ANN INC. and furnished
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required by
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

